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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision

to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from

or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any

statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mindtell Technology
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 November 2021.

REVIEW

The Group’s operation is mainly located in Malaysia. The Group has
provided system integration and computer related services since 2006
and continuously diversified our business to general trading services
in relation to IT services and provision of management advice and
consultancy services regarding computer softwares and information
technology. The Group provided IT services to both private and public
sectors and our customers include banks and financial institutions,
government and statutory bodies, education institutions, IT services

firms, software principals and other small and medium enterprises.

During the year ended 30 November 2021, it was a challenging year
to the Group. The Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic gave rise
to a challenging and uncertain economic environment to the global
market and brought prolonged adverse impact on all businesses. In
Malaysia, the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
implementation of nationwide Movement Control Order (“MCQO”) and
Standard Operating Procedures (“SOP”) by the Malaysian Government
continuously brought adverse impacts on the business operation. The
COVID-19 pandemic affected the negotiation of new projects and
delayed the progress of existing projects of the Group. Nevertheless,
the Group continued to use its best endeavor to secure the existing
projects and services rendered, to maintain stable operation and to
mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time,
the Group has actively negotiated and secured new projects and
tenders to enhance its business performance and continued to
develop advanced version of our existing IT products in order to
further increase the competitive edge of our technical competence.
The Group is also looking for appropriate investment opportunities to

strengthen the core business of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETREHREE

OUTLOOK

In view of the on-going impacts on the Malaysian economy caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic and the nationwide MCO in Malaysia,
the business environment will continue to remain challenging for the
Group. However, it is expected that the overall economic and operating
environment will recover gradually due to the increase in vaccination
rates and reopening of the affected economic sectors. The Group
will continue to actively pursue the following business strategies: (i)
to be a major IT solution provider to the development of digitalisation
in Malaysia; (ii) to capture new growth opportunities through our
successful product, Square Intelligence; (iii) to capture new market
segment — Small and Medium Enterprises; and (iv) to leverage on the
business networks of the Pre-IPO Investors to introduce IT products
in the PRC into Malaysia; and diversifying our service offerings to

our customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, bankers, customers and business partners for
their support and trust placed on us. | would also like to thank our
staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. With our competent
management and professional teams, | believe the Group will succeed

in achieving our business goals.

Yours sincerely,

Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is an IT service provider based in Malaysia and principally
engaged in the design, procurement, installation and maintenance of
customised systems application for corporate customers. Our services

mainly include:

(i) System integration and development - development and
customisation of corporate IT system applications on project
basis, either in the capacity as a main contractor or as a

subcontractor;

(i) IT outsourcing — performance of specific tasks for development
and customisation of corporate IT system applications which
are within our expertise under the supervision of customers;

and

(iii) Maintenance and consultancy — maintenance and support of

the developed IT system applications.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was derived from three principal businesses,
namely, system integration and development services, IT outsourcing
services and maintenance and consultancy services which are set out

in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 November 2021, the Group recorded an
increase in total revenue by approximately 71.6% to approximately
RM17.2 million (2020: approximately RM10.0 million). The increase
in revenue was mainly due to increase in revenue generated from
the system integration and development services and IT outsourcing

services.

Details of changes in the revenue derived from system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services, and maintenances and

consultancy services are analysed below.
System integration and development services

For system integration and development services, the revenue
increased by approximately 67.2% to approximately RM13.5 million
for the year ended 30 November 2021 (2020: approximately RM8.1

million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

The increase in revenue was mainly due to (i) the resumption of the
work progress of existing projects; and (ii) the commencement of
several significant new projects contributing revenue of over RM6.0
million during the year ended 30 November 2021.

IT outsourcing services

For IT outsourcing services, the revenue increased by approximately
163.9% to approximately RM2.9 million for the year ended 30 November
2021 (2020: approximately RM1.1 million). The increase in revenue was

mainly due to increase in the time of outsourcing services rendered.

Maintenance and consultancy services

For maintenance and consultancy services, the revenue remained
stable at approximately RMO0.8 million for the years ended 30 November
2021 and 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth a breakdown of gross profit and gross

profit margin for the years indicated:
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Gross profit EF 2,705 1,487
Gross profit margin FEH = 15.7% 14.9%

The gross profit increased from approximately RM1.5 million for the
year ended 30 November 2020 to approximately RM2.7 million for the
year ended 30 November 2021.

The gross profit margin increased from approximately 14.9% for the
year ended 30 November 2020 to approximately 15.7% for the year

ended 30 November 2021. It remained stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 7.3% to
approximately RM9.1 million for the year ended 30 November 2021
(2020: approximately RM9.8 million). The decrease was due to the
decrease in sales and marketing expenses and professional fee,

netting off the increase in amortisation of intangible assets.
Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately 13.3% to approximately
RM72,000 for the year ended 30 November 2021 (2020: approximately
RM83,000). The decrease was primarily because the Malaysia banks
granted a 6-month interest-free deferral of repayment for the interest-

bearing loans.
Income tax expenses

Income tax expense was approximately RM48,000 for the year ended
30 November 2021 (2020: nil). The income tax expenses mainly arose
from profits generated by two Malaysia subsidiaries for the financial

year.
Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RM6.3 million for the
year ended 30 November 2021 (2020: approximately RM11.2 million).
The decrease in loss was mainly attributable to the net effect of the
increase in revenue and gross profit and decrease in administrative
expenses, impairment loss on intangible assets and impairment loss

on trade receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At 30 November 2021, the total borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately RM2.1 million (2020: approximately RM1.8 million)
which comprised interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details on the effective interest rate and maturity profile of the Group’s
total borrowings are set out in Notes 13 and 21 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was 13.1% (2020:
8.2%). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings divided

by total equity at the end of the financial year.

At 30 November 2021, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately RM10.9 million (2020: approximately RM16.8 million).
The current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.8 times (2020:
approximately 2.7 times). Current ratio is calculated based on total
current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end of the

financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operation, available bank balances and cash as well
as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue to follow a
prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash and
maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure that the Group

is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 November 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2020: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 November 2021, the Group did not have significant capital

commitments contracted but not provided for (2020: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

At 30 November 2021, the Group did not have any significant

investments (2020: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30 November 2021, the Group had obtained banking facilities
on issuance of bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy
banks, which were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances of
approximately RM466,000 (2020: approximately RM309,000) as set

out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 November 2021 and 2020, the interest-bearing borrowings were
secured by properties owned by the Group with aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RM1.2 million as set out in Note 21(i) to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESPONSE TO OUTBREAK OF COVID-19
PANDEMIC

Since early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic spread worldwide and
caused significant threats to the global health and economy. The
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in, among other things, ongoing
travel restrictions, prolonged closures of workplaces, lockdowns in

certain countries and increased volatility in international capital market.

To control the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Malaysian
Government has implemented and continues to implement a series
of precautionary measures such as lockdowns, quarantines, travel

restrictions, business shutdowns and vaccination.

During the year of 2021, the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic affected
our business to certain extent. The COVID-19 pandemic has lasted
longer than we anticipated, with longer lockdown periods in the major
countries where we operate in as compared to the previous year,
and customers are mostly staying on the sidelines and delaying their
key information technology purchasing decisions. As a result, these

adversely affected our ability to deliver better financial results.

The ongoing situation of the COVID-19 pandemic continued to affect
our operations and business in Malaysia, including but not limited
to (i) temporary closure of offices and most of the staff worked from
home; (ii) delays of projects or slowdown of progress by the customers
due to their closure of offices and change in their deployment; and
(iii) facing challenges in the negotiation of new projects and securing
new business due to uncertainty of the development of the COVID-19

pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

The challenges are expected to persist in the near future. Nevertheless,
the overall economic and operating environment is expected to recover
gradually due to the increase in vaccination rates and reopening
of the affected economic sectors. The Group will continue to focus
on ensuring that all ongoing projects and services be secured and
keeping close contact with our customers and business partners
through online communication. Our priority has always been the

strategies below:

a. Focusing on enterprise banking and government agencies that
their demand for system, application and data management
services are consistent and their operations rely heavily on

information communication technology.

b. Providing pay-per-use or leasing commercial model to ease

customer’s financial burden and to secure long term contracts.

©. Establishing a unique and competitive information communication

technology solution.

We will continue to work in partnership with our customers to provide
them the recommendation to modernise their solutions they need
to take them forward into the digital age. We foresee the industry
has started to budget and plan for an expansionary future, in a new
norm with the COVID-19 virus being a part of the landscape for
the foreseeable future. We observe that significant deals that were
deferred are now being brought to table for discussion and negotiation.
We continue to focus on our customers’ requirements, providing them
the right solutions and staying on message to promote digital adoption

and transformation.

At the same time, the Group will monitor the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic to ensure the safety of employees and stable
operations and to mitigate the adverse impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. As and when appropriate, the Group will adjust its
measures and plans for pandemic prevention, operations and business

sustainability and development accordingly.
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FUTURE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The Group actively pursues the following business strategies: (i) to
be a major IT solution provider to the development of digitalisation in
Malaysia; (ii) to capture new growth opportunities through one of our
successful product, Square Intelligence; (iii) to capture new market
segment - Small and Medium Enterprises; and (iv) to leverage on
the business networks of the pre-IPO investors of the Company to
introduce IT products in the PRC into Malaysia, and diversify our

service offerings to our customers.

Details of the Group’s future business and development plans are

set out below:

(i) To be a major IT solution provider to the development of
digitalisation in Malaysia

Since the Listing, the Group has already recruited 12
additional IT specialists and outsourced partial development
and upgrading works to technology vendors in providing IT
solutions in Digital Free Trade Zone in Malaysia. However,
the Digital Free Trade Zone has been affected by change of
government and cancelled by the new government. On 19
February 2021, the Malaysian Government has unveiled the
country’s Digital Economy Blueprint in an effort to catch up in
the digitalisation race and introduced 10-year road map which
aims to transform Malaysia into a digital-driven, high income
nation and to become a regional leader in the digital economy.
Development efforts on the building of digital infrastructure will
be jointly undertaken by the Malaysian Government and the
private sector. The Malaysian Government will invest RM15
billion within a period of 10 years for the implementation of
5G in Malaysia. The Malaysian Government also targets to
migrate 80% of the public data to hybrid cloud systems by
the end of 2022. The Group has participated or planned to
participate in several digital transformation tenders undertaken
by the Malaysian Government or Government linked Companies
(GLCs). Presales activities such as technology demonstrations,
proofs of concept and value-added consultations are being

carried out.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Besides, the Group has developed the advanced version of our
mobile payment application (i.e. Blackbutton) in order to localize
the mobile payment product into Malaysia and integrating the
payment operator with the banking infrastructure. Blackbutton

Version 2.0 has been completed and ready for market.

The Group is also currently evaluating the potential acquisitions
or development of 4 new major intellectual properties to increase
the product features and enhance the compatibility of Square
Intelligence (i.e. NS3) and the customer relationship management
system (i.e. CUSTPRO).

These functions include scalable mobility technology, statistical
modeling of business performance, API technology, as well as
building a digital banking feature on top of NS3 and CUSTPRO.

Numerous proof of concept and presentation from intellectual
property provider has been carried out. Several intellectual
property providers are also identified. We are evaluating the
acquisition and its potential return on investment, and the
trend of market demand. As the market is slowing down due to
continuous pandemic, it affects business incentive and demand
for information communication technology. At the date of this

report, we have not yet placed any investment.

The Group has started to design the high level functional
requirements and the overall technical architecture for the said
digital banking platform. The design of the platform is based
on the latest technology that allows the platform to run on both
premise and cloud infrastructure in order to meet the demand
for both. The Group targets to create a solution that is scalable
to potential clients of all sizes with the system business process
that is adaptable to the client’s business operations. The solution
is going through the final testing stage and is ready to be

launched to the market soon.
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(i)

In order to enable the Group to secure contracts from government
authorities and agencies and tender for larger government
tenders, the Group has accelerated its pace in the acquisition
of service providers that possess government's service
provider license (i.e. Taraf Bumiputra MOF) since early 2021.
Only companies possessing this license are eligible to provide
services, goods and sales to the governmental authorities and
agencies. Given that the majority shareholders of the applicants
for government tenders and contracts must be Bumiputera
in order to obtain the full licence of Taraf Bumiputera MOF,
the Group is only eligible to be a minority shareholder of the
company that possesses this licence. During the year ended 30
November 2021, the management had endeavoured to negotiate
for a potential acquisition of a company that possesses the
licence of Taraf Bumiputra MOF and performed certain due
diligence works on the acquisition target. However, the results
were not satisfactory and therefore the negotiation was halted.
As at the date of this report, no other definite acquisition target

has been identified.

Affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and its economic
impact on the global market, it is expected that it persists to
give rise to an uncertain economic environment to the Malaysian
market. In the coming years, the information technology industry
in Malaysia is expected to remain challenging and competitive.
Looking forward, the Group will remain cautious and continue
to pay close attention and focus on providing IT solutions by
integrating the existing resources and optimising the business

performance.

To capture new growth opportunities through our
successful product, Square Intelligence

Our product, Square Intelligence (based on the technical know-
how of NS3), has been successful since its introduction to the
Malaysian market. The Group is continuously developing the
advanced version of Square Intelligence. New functions that
incorporate machine learning capabilities have been developed
to further enhance the features offered by Square Intelligence.
The new functions are capable of performing data extraction
from un-structured data source such as manual documentation,

reports and forms. It is designed to convert these un-structured

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(ii)
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(iii)

data into text based information on Optical Character Recognition
technology with Al, and from there, Square Intelligence shall
be able to perform further analysis according to the business
requirements. The advanced version of Square Intelligence has

been completed and launched to the market during the year.

Under COVID-19 pandemic, the suspension of operation in
Malaysia and global travel restriction directly and indirectly
affects the seeking out of potential customers and negotiation
and securing of new projects of the Group. However, the
management will actively adjust its existing business plans,
formulate more alternative business plans and perform a series
of sales and marketing efforts in order to expand its existing
market share. The Board expects that the enhancement of our
products will continuously generate a sustainable cash inflow to

the Group through the aforesaid measures and means.

To capture new market segment — Small and Medium

Enterprises

The Group is currently studying the feasibility of the Group
to expand into the Small and Medium Enterprises (“SMEs”)
market by introducing digital solutions that are highly demanded
especially in the retail industry. To our understanding, the
retail industry is eagerly looking for a solution that helps to
increase productivity in the current working environment under
the pressure of reduced operating manpower and at the same
time in full compliance with the COVID-19 SOP restrictions.
The first solution that the Group intends to develop is to enable
businesses to operate a digital ordering process, and followed by
the streamlined process to complete the order and confirmation
process. Equipped with our mature relationship with the finance
sector and our existing product line for payment operations, the
Group is also looking at introducing a cashless payment feature
into the said solution in order to enable the SMEs to operate
on cashless basis, which helps to increase efficiency on all
operational levels. The blueprint of the solution is expected to

be completed by the second quarter of 2022.

(iii)
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(iv) To leverage on the business networks of the Pre-IPO
Investors to introduce IT products in the PRC into
Malaysia; and diversity our service offerings to our

customers

The Group has been discussing with various potential technology
partners in the PRC regarding the launch of their services/
products in Malaysia. Site visits were conducted to further
discuss business collaboration for Malaysian market before
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. However, these activities
were put on hold or delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic

and restrictions on international travel.

Once the international travel is substantially resumed, the
Group will continue to discuss with potential business partners,
and actively explore valuable IT products for the purpose of

diversifying our products and services offering to our customers.

The Board will closely monitor the impact of the government policies
of Malaysia on the Group’s future business and development plans

and make further adjustments to the plans if necessary.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(iv)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified various principal risk factors and uncertainties

that may affect our operating results and business prospects, including

but not limited to the following:

Risk factors and uncertainties

BEBREER FREEREZE

Most of the contracts are project-based which create

uncertainty and sustainability of our future revenue steams

RERD & KIATR B BER
EAEAE =

» B 2 AR SR MR T K T R AR M AE AR

Dependent on major customers for a significant portion of
our business and any decrease in revenue generated from
major customers could materially and adversely affect our

business, results of operations and financial condition

BREEEFPINERBANA ML - HEERSEL 2 UG
DEERMT T @B EERSBRREREATH LS

Cost overruns or delays in our system integration and
development projects may materially and adversely affect

our business, financial position and results of operation

Mz R BE RFHEIAR TR R ANEB S RIER - ATaeH#
P2 %% MBRARRERBEERENTNZE

TERBRAEERE

AEBEBRAIRFELEXEREBAR
EETERBREAXREIEERNE  BRETR
RUATNEIA :

Risk Response
[ B 1

To secure new contracts, the Group continuously enhances
its product and services offerings, introduces various

marketing and promotional activities, and provides
customised solutions to the customers.

RERHEH  AEETEMRERTIRBAS - HHEEEH
%D%EE;E%JJ U RBEPREEHICERIRT R -

The Group maintains good and long-term relationships with the
existing customers. At the same time, the Group introduces
various marketing and promotional activities to attract
potential customers and to increase market awareness. The
Group will continue to work on opportunities and explore
the market with the current and new technological offerings
acquired through partnerships.

REBERAEFPRFRFLEMNGIERE - AR - REEE
ﬁ%ﬁ""fﬁ&%&ﬁééﬂ WEBERF - IRETISHEE A

SEBEEN BB ERHARESHIRAE MTRNERS
Kt L%ﬁﬁ

The COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in the cost overruns
and delays in projects. Nevertheless, the Group continues
to manage the cost carefully, rationalize cost structure and
optimise the resources utilisation and efficiencies.

COVID-19& B3| BUR A X FIH B AT HIRIER - A - &
SESREFETERAE AR AEERELCERFA
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Risk factors and uncertainties

BEBREER FREREE

Failure to anticipate and keep pace with our customer’s

business and industry

EOXEGNE EREPEBRITRZAEER

Significant delays in collecting trade receivables from our

customers

AEPWEE 5 UGB B IREAFER

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Risk Response

[ B 21 P

The Group closely monitors the changes in technologies
and reviews the customers’ needs to mitigate the risks.
The Group also develops advanced versions of its
existing products and evaluates the potential acquisitions
of IT business from time to time to meet the customers’
demands. We also developed a fully digital capability to
continue in delivering consulting & technological services
remotely such that all projects are able to be carried out
even under Movement Control Order.

REETYIBRRNEEREREPHNFZ K - ARERR - K
S E R IR A E m R IRA R AR B ERN B AR
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The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy customers
and generally does not provide a long credit period to new
customers unless they are sizable enterprises with good
reputation. The trade receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis by the management. To collect overdue
trade receivables, the Group closely monitors overdue
payments and performs credit search on our customers

to ensure their recoverability.

Although the pandemic has affected prompt & timeliness of
payment of many customers, credit and payment terms
has been restructured to ensure these customer continue
to settle their outstanding fees when due. The collection
progress has been achieved constantly.
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For a more comprehensive description of risk factors, please also
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 29 September 2018 (the “Prospectus”) which are still
applicable to the Group.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group

are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of the business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of its foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The management monitors our foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised by the Company from the share offer of
the Company were approximately RM30.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$58.6 million) (based on the final Offer Price (as
defined in the Prospectus) of HK$0.62 per offer share adjusted by
the Downward Offer Price Adjustment (as defined in the Prospectus)).
The Company adjusted the use of net proceeds on a pro rata basis
for the purposes as disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus and the
price reduction announcement dated 16 October 2018, which were

as follows:

- approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, for strengthening our technical team by recruiting

more IT specialists

- approximately RM18.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.2 million), representing approximately 60% of the
net proceeds, for purchase of hardware and equipment for
establishment of IT infrastructure for the provision of cloud

storage and cloud computing services

FLEARARBHAE-ZT—/\FAA=TIA
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- approximately RM6.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.7 million), representing approximately 20% of the net
proceeds, for research and development of advanced and

adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products

- approximately RM3.05 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million), representing approximately 10% of the net
proceeds, as general working capital

On 19 March 2021, the Board resolved to change the use of the
remaining balance of the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
RM17.28 million to research and development of advanced and
adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products (RM3.28 million),
the acquisition of IT business (RM3.00 million) and for the Group’s
general working capital (RM11.00 million) (the “First Change in UOP”).
Details of the First Change in UOP were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 March 2021.

As at 31 January 2022, the Group had unutilised net proceeds of
approximately RM3.00 million originally allocated for acquisition of
IT business and approximately RM2.84 million for general working
capital. On 28 February 2022, the Board has resolved to re-allocate the
unutilised net proceeds of approximately RM3.00 million for acquisition
of IT business to research and development of advanced and adapted
versions of our Group’s existing IT products (the “Second Change
in UOP”).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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The table below sets out the utilization of the net proceeds up to 30

TREJAFHRBFRBE_ZT_—F+—H

November 2021 and 31 January 2022, and the Second Change in UOP: TR E-_—F—A=+—HZERABR
REZRBAASHRERS :
Adjusted Amount of New
Original intended net utilised net Amount of Amount of allocation of  Expected
use of proceeds after proceeds unutilised net unutilised net unutilised  timeline for
net proceeds the First up to proceeds proceeds  net proceeds after  utilising the
from the Change in 30 November up to as at Second Change  unutilised
Use of proceeds Listing uop 2021 30 November 2021 31 January 2022 inUOP net proceeds
HE BE i E-REY
HE-R Z8>-f ZBI-f ut it FERERRE
RiT LM EyAREL t-B=1A t-A=+A -A=t-A RBRMERE  ABRMERE
FEREFE LT WEERHE NRBRAE KRERHE BEN  FENEEER
HERERE RERg EFE REFE REFE HEFE §i3E BB
RM million RM million RM million RM million RM million RM million
S¥aET FREET 5EEET FHEET 5EEEr i
Strengthening our technical team by recruiting 3.05 3.05 (3.05) - - -
more [T specialists
BRESEAMRET U NER BN
Purchase of hardware and equipment for 18.30 1.02 (1.02) - - -
establishment of IT infrastructure for the
provision of cloud storage and cloud
computing services
BERKRRBIEUERRRERR - Rl
ShRERERESRE
Research and development of advanced and 6.10 9.38 (8.96) 042 - 300 30 November 2022
adapted versions of our Group's existing IT 3
products (Note 1) +-A=1A
TErEERAARNRER ERRNE
EfRit1)
Acquisttion of IT business (Note 2) - 3.00 - 3.00 3.00 -
WEEARRERM)
General working capital (Note 3) 3.0 14.05 (9.35) 470 284 284 31 May 2022
-REEEL () ;;E
Total 30.50 30.50 (22.38) 8.12 584 584
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Notes:

1. The existing IT products of our Group include Square Intelligence,
CUSTPRO and Blackbutton.

2. The acquisition target(s) include companies which possess the Taraf

Bumiputera MOF. During the year, the management had endeavoured
to negotiate for a potential acquisition of a company that possesses the
licence of Taraf Bumiputra MOF, but the potential acquisition did not

proceed due to unsatisfactory due diligence results.

3. At the date of the First Change in UOP, the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately RM11 million were reallocated to general working capital
comprising staff costs of approximately RM7.6 million, professional fees
of approximately RM1.5 million, finance costs of approximately RMO.1
million and others of approximately RM1.8 million. At the date of the
Second Change of UOP, there was no change in the use of the remaining
unutilised amount of approximately RM2.84 million for general working
capital. The expected timeline for utilisation was slightly extended from 31
March 2022 to 31 May 2022 based on the best estimation of the present

and future business market conditions made by the Board.

Reasons for the Second Change in UOP

At the date of this report, the amount of net proceeds of approximately
RM9.38 million allocated for the research and development of advanced
and adapted versions of our Group’s existing IT products after the
First Change in UOP has been fully utilised by the Group.

The Group is currently studying the feasibility to expand into the
Small and Medium Enterprises (“SMEs”) market by introducing digital
solutions that are highly demanded especially in the retail industry. To
our understanding, the retail industry is eagerly looking for a solution
that helps to increase productivity in the current working environment
under the pressure of reduced operating manpower and at the same
time in full compliance with the COVID-19 SOP restrictions. The first
solution that the Group intends to develop is to enable businesses to
operate a digital ordering process, and followed by the streamlined
process to complete the order and confirmation process. Equipped
with our mature relationship with the finance sector and our existing
product line for payment operations, the Group is also looking at

introducing a cashless payment feature into the said solution in order to
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enable the SMEs to operate on cashless basis, which helps to increase
efficiency on all operational levels. In order to capture the SMEs
market, the Group needs funds to continue to develop our existing IT
products, namely Square Intelligence, CUSTPRO and Blackbutton. As
such, given that it is unlikely that a suitable acquisition target could
be identified in the foreseeable future, the Board has resolved that it
would be in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders to
reallocate RM3.00 million of the unutilised net proceeds which was
originally assigned for acquisition of IT business after the First Change
in UOP to the research and development of advanced and adapted

versions of our Group’s existing IT products.

The Board confirms that there is no material change in the business of
the Group as set out in the Prospectus. The Board considered that the
Second Change in UOP will enable the Group to deploy its financial
resources more effectively and to facilitate its business development
plan, and therefore such change is in the interest of the Group and

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 November 2021, the Group had a total of 60 employees (2020:
61) in Hong Kong and Malaysia. For the year ended 30 November
2021, total staff costs and related expenses of the Group (including
the Directors’ remuneration) were approximately RM7.7 million (2020:

approximately RM7.7 million).

Employees’ remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Apart from the statutory retirement benefits and medical benefits,
the Group also provides trainings to employees to enhance their

knowledge and maintain the quality of our services.

EESUHABRBEAREER + BlSquare
Intelligence * CUSTPRO K Blackbutton °
gt - SN FE R TE R AR D KA B HETE & Y
WEEER EFeRZHE-_XRERAER
HRARERAGRREZWEEMRREBNTE
3,000,0007LARB RS RIAFHR - EFHEE
HEREBEIRE EMBHRE M2 B R & EE
bR - UL TR R TS A A A K& H AR R A A F
2 o

EERWR - BRE IR0 A R BB
BEAEE - BELRAE-REXFBRE
FREEAEEENE AR E LM S ER
BREEEBHENE - BUUBTRFAR
23 R VNGEE LT LI

BERFMBUR

RZZE-—F+—A=+8  F£EBEFHK
SRAGTEASHLOEBRERE(ZZ=ZZF : 61
B) BE_ZTE-_—F+—A=THILEE -
AEBEZHBEIRARBEAZ(BEEESH
) 494 B #7,700,0000( Z 2 =2F : HIF
7,700,0007T) °
EEFHELEMBRAREBEZRE - BB
RIEHET - BRETRKEFN RBEEMIN -
REBMIPABTREE - ARFAMM 2 505
RAEFSRISE R ©

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

25



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group joins a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) Scheme in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group is required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those

of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia also operate Employees
Provident Fund (the “EPF”) for their employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements prescribed by the relevant Malaysian laws and
regulations. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
(6%-13%) of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020, there were no
forfeited contributions which were available to reduce the Group’s

existing level of contributions to the MPF Scheme and the EPF.

For the year ended 30 November 2021, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the schemes was approximately RM629,000 (2020:
approximately RM602,000).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (“Mr. Chong”), aged 41, the founder of the
Group, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive Director of the Company on 27 February 2018.
Mr. Chong is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Excel Elite Global Limited, Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. and
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. He is mainly responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategy and planning; overseeing the Group’s
performance and management; and leading and representing the

Group in negotiation with potential business partners.

Mr. Chong is experienced in the field of system integration and
development as a software engineer. From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chong
worked in iPower Berhad, a company engaged in system integration
based in Malaysia. From March 2017 to December 2020, Mr. Chong
was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company engaged in
the provision of online home design solutions. In the past 11 years,
Mr. Chong has been working relentlessly to build up the Group.
In particular, he has participated in the development of NS3 and
CUSTPRO, the two self-developed IT products of the Group.

Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Information Technology
majoring in software engineering with honours from Multimedia
University in Malaysia in May 2003. Subsequently, he completed
three IBM professional certification programs, which are IBM Certified
Specialist DB2 and IBM Certified Database Administrator respectively
in 2004 and IBM Certified System Administrator — Websphere
Application Server Network Deployment in 2006.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (“Mr. Liu”), aged 51, was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 March 2018. Mr. Liu is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company, namely Excel Elite Global Limited. He is
also currently the compliance officer and an authorised representative

of the Company.

Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in finance and accounting. He
is currently and has been an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 899) since
April 2017 and August 2018 respectively. He is also currently and has
been an executive director of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2212) since August 2019. He was the chief executive
officer of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited from 26 October 2018
to 16 June 2020. He was an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Luen Wong Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8217) from March 2016 to December 2017.

Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce from Dalhousie
University in Canada in February 1994.

Mr. Liu has been criticised by the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange on 20 January 2020 in relation to his breach of Rule
3.08(f) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”), and his obligations under the Declaration
and Undertaking with regards to directors given by him to the Stock
Exchange set out in Appendix 5 of the Listing Rules, in discharging his
fiduciary duties as an executive director of Asia Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 899) with sufficient skill, care and diligence of a
director as may reasonably be expected of a person of his knowledge
and experience and holding his office. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2020.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (“Mr. Siah”), aged 42, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 27 February 2018. Mr. Siah is also a
director of the subsidiaries of the Company, namely Tandem Advisory
Sdn. Bhd., Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. and Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd..

In 2005, Mr. Siah founded CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd., which focuses on,
among others, business intelligence and data warehousing, for
enabling a business to gather and analyse its data regarding specific
function areas such as finance, supply chain, human resources, sales
and marketing and customer service to provide historical, current
and predictive views of business operations and has been the chief
operating officer and a director thereof until his resignation in February
2018. He was responsible for the operations and research and
development of CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd.. From March 2017 to December
2020, Mr. Siah was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company
engaged in the provision of online home design solutions. Mr. Siah
is experienced in the implementation of business intelligence, data

warehousing and banking solutions.

Currently, Mr. Siah is a director of Rivermains Technology Sdn. Bhd.,

a company engaged in the provision of online car insurance.

Mr. Siah obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering (Mechanical) with
honours from University of Malaya in September 2002. Subsequently,
he received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management
in February 2005 and an ITIL Manager’s Certificate in IT Service

Management in September 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lam Pang (“Mr. Lam”), aged 52, was appointed as a non-

executive Director on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Lam has around 30 years of extensive experience in trading
between the PRC and Hong Kong, and property investment in the
PRC. He founded Stars (Holdings) Limited (now known as Stars
Pacific Limited), of which he has been the director and has been
engaged in trading business since 1992. He was the chairman of
GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now known as GOME
Retail Holdings Limited), a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0493) from December 2000 to April
2002 and an executive director from September 2000 to May 2007.
Afterwards, Mr. Lam was an executive director of |LIE & Z&E K%
BBRAF] (Shandong Jintai Group Co., Ltd), a listed company on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600385) from July 2007 to
June 2013, and a director of Blossombhill Investment Limited (formerly
known as Special Fine Investment and Management Limited) from
December 2013 to October 2015. From 2015 to October 2019, Mr.
Lam was the general manager of & 1BERFAZEHFR QA (Hunan
Fu Heng Construction Development Co., Ltd.), which is principally

engaged in infrastructure and property development.

7 o

Mr. Lam currently serves as the consultant of ZIITEHR LS
(Shenzhen Association of Chinese Traditional Culture Studies), #
BRI BRI E ERESRERRIIEZ8® (Health Science and
Technology Work Committee of China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation) and B &R &

& (China pre-Qin History Society).

Mr. Lam graduated from Pui Ying Secondary School in late 1980s.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan San Ping (“Mr. Chan”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit

committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Chan was the partner of GrammyTech Limited from September
20083 to April 2013, and is the managing partner of EMP Partners since
May 2013. During the said periods, he has been responsible for the
management of the business for banking and finance recruitment in
Hong Kong and China. From July 1997 to September 2003, Mr. Chan
was the managing partner of Grammy Financial Institutions Group
Limited, and his main responsibility covered the management of the
senior level recruitment business for financial services industry in Hong
Kong and North Asia. These past and present positions have given
Mr. Chan around 25 years of experiences in recruitment of talents in

the finance industry.

Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor's degree of Arts with honours, majoring

in business studies from City University of Hong Kong in 1988.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Su Chi Wen (“Mr. Su”), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. He is the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration

committee and audit committee.

Mr. Su has over 20 years of experience working in the IT industry. Mr.
Su has been the deputy IT director of C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.)
Ltd since January 2014 and was the project manager of C&C Joint
Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd from May 2005 to December 2013. Prior to
that, Mr. Su was the executive director of High-Growth (H.K.) Limited
from July 1997 to June 2000. From July 1995 to March 1997, Mr. Su

was the system consultant of System Management Consultancy Ltd.

Mr. Su was the founder of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys Solutions
Holdings Limited (now known as Enviro Energy International Holdings
Limited), a company formerly listed on GEM (Stock Code: 8182) since
February 2003 and subsequently transferred its listing from GEM to
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1102) since
December 2010. From July 2000 to May 2004, he was the executive
director and chief executive officer of Sys Solutions Limited and Sys

Solutions Holdings Limited.

Mr. Su obtained a Bachelor's degree of Commerce, majoring in
marketing from Dalhousie University in Canada in 1995. He was
awarded a certificate of digital asset management by the Advanced
Printing Technology Centre (APTEC), a subsidiary of the Hong Kong
Printers Association in 2005. In 2014, Mr. Su received an executive
diploma in digital marketing from Hong Kong Management Association

and a certificate from China Business Executives Academy Dalian.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella (“Ms. Ho”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 19 September 2018. She is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration

committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Ho has been the chief financial officer and the company secretary
of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
2882) since May 2017 and March 2018 respectively. From September
2007 to February 2017, Ms. Ho served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Paradise Entertainment Limited (Stock Code:
1180). Prior to that, she was the financial controller and company
secretary of Linefan Technology Holdings Limited (now known as China
Eco-Farming Limited) (Stock Code: 8166) from May 2004 to September
2007. She was the financial manager of Recruit Holdings Limited
(now known as Kingkey Intelligence Culture Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 550) from November 2002 to August 2003 and the accounting
manager of Systek Information Technology Limited (now known as
Dadi International Group Limited) (Stock Code: 8130) from October
2001 to November 2002. These past and present positions have given
Ms. Ho over 20 years of financial and accounting experience and

extensive experience of working in the listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Ho obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy with honours
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994. She was admitted as
a member of both The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in May
1998 and May 2000 respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang Hen Yong (“Mr. Pang”), aged 42, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2012 and is
responsible for all aspects of strategic IT planning, implementation,
and support as an integral component of the business plan. He is also
responsible for budgeting, design and support of all technological

issues of the Group.

Mr. Pang worked as the technical consultant for DKSH Holding AG,
also known as DiethelmKellerSiberHegner, a company listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange (Stock Code: DKSH) from March 2007 to July
2011. From July 2011 to December 2012, he worked as the technical
consultant for GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company listed on both the
London Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK) and the New York Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: GSK).

Mr. Pang obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Information Technology with
honours from Universiti Tenaga Nasional in August 2003. He received
an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in October
2012. In 2014, he completed IBM professional certification program,

namely IBM Certified System Administrator.

Mr. Wong Puh Yih (“Mr. Wong”), aged 39, is the head of research
and development department of the Group. He was appointed as a
member of the technical team of the Group in April 2014. His main
responsibilities include: (i) development and design of product from
concept to specifications and implementation and (ii) coordination
with internal or external engineering teams on the new process and

equipment design, scale-up, capability improvement and validation.

Mr. Wong obtained an Associate Degree in Information Technology
from New Era College in 2006. He is certified as a Sun Certified
Programmer for the Java Platform in 2010. In 2014, he completed
two IBM professional certification programs, namely IBM Certified

Database Administrator and IBM Certified Database Associate.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Lam Yat Ting (“Ms. Lam”), aged 39, was appointed as the

company secretary of the Group on 8 March 2018.

Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and audit. She
has been the financial controller of Man Lee Management Limited, a
subsidiary of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 899) since
May 2018. She was the executive director and company secretary
of Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing Group Limited (now
known as Cornerstone Technologies Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
8391) from September 2018 to June 2019. From October 2016 to April
2018, she worked at New World Facilities Management Company
Limited, a subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited
(Stock Code: 17) where her last position held was a finance manager.
Prior to that, she worked at a medium size C.P.A. firm from March 2008

to October 2016 where her last position held was an audit manager.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accountancy with honours from City University of Hong Kong in 2006.
She is admitted as a qualified accountant of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants since January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Preserving the high levels of corporate governance and business
ethics is one of the Group’s major objectives. The Group considers
that conducting business in a reliable way will maximise its long term

interests and those of its stakeholders.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code effective on or before 31 December
2021 (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing

Rules.

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the Company had complied

with the CG Code, except for the derivations as stated below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping is currently the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and is responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategy and planning
of the Group. In view that Mr. Chong has been responsible for the
overall management of the Group since its inception, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to
have Mr. Chong taken up both roles for effective management and
business development. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under our present arrangement will not be impaired because of the
diverse background and experience of the other executive Director,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advisers
when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors consider that
the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate

in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises six
other experienced and high-calibre individuals including one other
executive Director, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors who would be able to offer advice from
various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions of the Group,
the Company will consult the relevant Board committees and senior
management. Considering the present size and the scope of business
of the Group, the Board considers that it is not in the best interest
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole to separate the
roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer, because the
separation would render the decision-making process of the Company
less efficient than the current structure. Therefore, the Board considers
that the present arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of the

Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Code Provision A.2.7

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman should
at least annually hold a meeting with the independent non-executive
directors without the presence of other directors. Due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic and travelling restrictions, the chairman of
the Board was not able to hold such meeting face-to-face with the
independent non-executive Directors. After the reporting period and
as of the date of this report, the chairman had held such meeting
with the independent no-executive Directors in compliance with code
provision A.2.7. The Company will arrange video conference and
ensure proper equipment are in place for such meetings in the future

in order to provide more flexibility.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealings”), as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, each of
the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Standard
of Dealings from the date on which the shares of the Company are
first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”) and up to the

date of this annual report.

REFBRECREAREZHETERERTA
STRAMRXEA21G EFEEHBIIANBAR
BREHET B ALRAK  BESIN—EH
TEE MEFNTEER=BIYIHNTE
F OREEHETATEREER < #IN > 5
AEBZERXNREME @ ARARKEHEAGREE
E=ZSZEehSREEE - KEEAEER
RRARLEBHE  EFTeR/EN TFETT
Bz AT NEEARREREKRER 2 ZE
REMSR FREIHELBEERE  BEoxEH
BESAEEZRRBEMEXERE - At - &
ZERRABLTHH AR RBRERE N R
NEREERNE -

SRR EA.2.71%

RIBEEERTANTAIREA2.7K - £/F
RELBFEEAMESTITESNBERLTEBY
FATEFRT—REHE - ARCOVID-19K
MITEVRBEMIRITIRSG) - EF G FEAREES
VHATEFTEHERITAMEE - RNHREH
BRERBEAREDH  TFEETTKRIE
ATIREBIYFFRTEERITAMERE - AR
AAREAEEFERLHGRERLRRAS
HEENRE - URERERNEEE

EEZEFEXS

RRFEFHMGEM T AR RIS 5.46 25,67 1§ FF
HRXHGHRTEERE(RHEE]  EREFZHE
HERGZBRETH - KMAMBESIEHEEE
e EFEZEEHERABARFMKMN B R H
RTEMER( LELTWHBDREEARFHRAH
BETRHIRE o

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 3R

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXER®|E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board is primarily responsible for the overall
business plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation
of the Group’s policies and strategies, monitoring of the business
performance, internal controls and risk management, environmental,
social and governance as well as supervision of the management of

the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management. The delegated functions are reviewed

by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the needs of the Group.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT
OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company

and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director
who wishes to retire and not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any
further Directors so to retire shall be those who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,

professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the board

diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
one of which is female. Two of our Directors, namely, Mr. Chong Yee
Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, are between the age group of 40 — 49
while other Directors are between the age group of 50 — 59. We have

three senior management, one of which is female.

All board and senior management appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective

criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term.
Pursuant to the letters of appointment between the Company and
the non-executive Directors, the non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
written notice. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement

by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, with at least one of them having appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the code provision C.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella,
Mr. Chan San Ping and Mr. Su Chi Wen. Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella is

the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in the
assessment of auditors’ independence, appointment, re-appointment,
removal and remuneration, to provide an independent view of the
effectiveness of the Company'’s financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system, to oversee the audit process
and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussing auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters including the review of quarterly results, interim
results and annual results and financial statements for the year ended
30 November 2021.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan San Ping, Mr. Su Chi Wen and Ms. Ho Suet
Man Stella. Mr. Chan San Ping is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Su Chi Wen, Mr. Chan San Ping and Ms. Ho
Suet Man Stella. Mr. Su Chi Wen is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to, inter alia,
make recommendations to the Board to fill vacancies on the same
based on the Company’s board diversity policy and nomination policy.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from the Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are
not nominated by the Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for a director include, inter alia,
reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a board member, diversity of the Board, and such other
perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval.
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BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board papers
of the regular meetings are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at the meetings. Minutes of all board and committee meetings

are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which such

Directors or any of their close associates have a material interest.

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the attendance of the
Directors at the board meetings, committee meetings and general

meetings are summarised as follows:

i EA4f

HREME=SREMNS  EFEXNEEED14
BaxN pEMEFELZBEEEMS -
RIETAEBA - EHEZLREREFTEX
HRAERFEARLXAELRES  B2BE
EUREZLEMBERESERR - EES
ENRECERLERLBHATRTES U
AHESERH -

ERMAHAGXMTESEASG LR ERZ

EEERRE 2 AMBBEATERER 2 EM
ALK TMAEBEZRERERTER
ANETEANE ©

REBEE-T-_—F+—A=1tHLFE ==
HEEEe g% ZECCRMBRRERSZE
ST

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

Board
Name of Directors Meeting
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Executive Directors TES
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EENLE 5/5
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (SO bided 4/5
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang R E 4/5
Mr. Lam Pang Pyt 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIYFHTES
Mr. Chan San Ping BRETRE 5/5
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella DEE3 5/5
Mr. Su Chi Wen BREE 5/5
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the

Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of the Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

this corporate governance report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2021, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with international accounting principles and applied
them consistently. A statement by the joint auditors of the Company
about its responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent joint auditors’ report contained in this annual report.
The Directors adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 30 November
2021, each of the Directors received regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments to the Group’s business and to the
legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group operates,
and was also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. During
the Year, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping (executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (executive
Director), Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang and Mr. Lam Pang (each a non-
executive Director), Mr. Chan San Ping, Mr. So Suet Man Stella and Mr.
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Su Chi Wen (each an independent non-executive Director) participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by way
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Group’s
business, the GEM Listing Rules and directors’ duties, and provided

his or her training records to the Company on a yearly basis.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal

advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Yat Ting is the company secretary of the Company. During
the year ended 30 November 2021, Ms. Lam had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update her skill and
knowledge as required under the GEM Listing Rules. Please refer to
the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report for the biographical details of the company

secretary of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP (together
“Mazars”) as its joint auditors for the year ended 30 November 2021.
The analysis of the joint auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 30

November 2021 is set out as follow:
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HEBRECE
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T+ -A=1tHLFE Mzt kRR
GEMEMRANREREZ AP/ NFHEBER
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BB 2 % B
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RARIRISEZEREMEE TR =T (5HE
[Mazars D REBE-_T-_—F+—-A=+HL
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THIEFEZEEZEMFTMOATEHI AT

Fee amount
BREHE
RM’000
HEFT

Audit services ZHRH
Mazars Mazars 440
Local auditors in Malaysia (Not Mazars) 5 2R 70 28 /9 AN 3 i B A (FEMazars) 19
Total et 459
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review

the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 30 November 2021, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision C.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on code provision C.2.2 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the external independent consultant on the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems in respect of the year
ended 30 November 2021 and considered that they are effective and
adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control
systems by considering the internal control review report and reviews

performed by the Audit Committee and concurred with them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings shall at all time have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)

by the Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders. To
ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established several
channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.mindtelltech.com;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum
for the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (Attention: The
Company Secretary).

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To comply with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company on 19 September 2018 and it took effect on the
Listing Date. A copy of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website
at www.mindtelltech.com. During the year ended 30 November 2021,
there has been no change in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Mindtell Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 November 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance and
consultancy services. Details of its principal subsidiaries as at 30
November 2021 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 November
2021 and future business development of the Group are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 November 2021 and
the financial positions of the Company and the Group as at that date
are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on pages

69 to 155 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any
distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles and

the distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable return on investment of the
investors and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to them
to continue to support the Group in their long-term development, the
financial conditions and business plan of the Group, and the market

sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any

specific periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 30 November 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 34.9%
(2020: 50.0%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
95.2% (2020: 92.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
42.7% (2020: 53.7%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials
sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 88.2% (2020: 88.2%)
of the Group’s total cost of services and materials sold incurred.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more of the issued
Shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s major

customers or suppliers during the year ended 30 November 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 30 November 2021 are set out in Note

12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
ended 30 November 2021 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended
30 November 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 November 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 72 to 73 and in Note 24(a)

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 November 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RM11.1 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 November 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 19 September 2018. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to grant an option to subscribe for shares of the
Company (the “Option”) to eligible persons as defined in the Share
Option Scheme (including, inter alia, directors, employees, suppliers,
customers and consultants of the Group) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

Subject to rules on grant of options to connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of our Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being, and any
further grant exceeding the said limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting.

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on
19 September 2018, which shall expire on 18 September 2028. Since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to 30 November
2021, no Option has been granted by the Company. As of the date
of this annual report, the Company had 39,000,000 shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme (representing 10% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report). An option may be accepted within 21 days from the
date of offer. A sum of HK$1.00 shall be payable on acceptance.
Unless determined by the Directors otherwise, there is no minimum
holding period before it can be exercised. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
of the appendix headed “Statutory and General Information” of the
Prospectus.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or (ii) requires the Company enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 30 November 2021 or subsisted at

the end of the year.

DONATION

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2020: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 November
2021 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan San Ping
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella
Mr. Su Chi Wen
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DIRECTORS

Biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Pursuant to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once

every three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions

therein and in the Articles.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date which may

be terminated by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non- executive Directors to be independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY, REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is stipulated by
the Directors on the basis of the employees’ individual performance,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and determined by the Board, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and market

comparables.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ OR DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity associated with him/her or a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has
or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

any time during or at the end of the year ended 30 November 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about execution of duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty committed

by the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance since February 2019, which provides appropriate cover

for the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that save and except for the deviations from
code provision A.2.1 and A.2.7 of the CG Code effective on or before
31 December 2021, the Company has met the code provisions set
out in the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the principal
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual

report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group has endeavored to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness

towards environmental protections among our staff and employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2021, to the best of knowledge
of the Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a

significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are

set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2021, the Directors are not aware
of any related party transactions which constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 November 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred therein;
or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Capacity and

Name of Directors nature of interest

EEnsg SR RERME
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Note 1)

acting in concert
EEMEE (1) RIEFERR R —BITHAL
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (Note 1)

acting in concert
HBELE (Hat1) REFERERR—HTPAL

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner

BHRE BRfEBA
Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner
£ BRfEBA

Interests of controlled corporation and person

Interests of controlled corporation and person

EEREFRTRAEBRAQAFAREEE
EEZBRG HEARORES2ESER
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Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share

(Note 2) capital
BEESCRHUE EEDTEBRITRE
(Hat2) BREAL
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company: (continued)

Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as confirmed by
them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin
Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is deemed to
be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge Limited
and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
or the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and “Share Option Scheme” above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their respective spouse and children under 18
years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any of its associated corporations at any time during the year ended
30 November 2021.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, at 30 November 2021, the following
persons have or are deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Name of substantial
shareholders

FTERRHSR
Delicate Edge Limited
(Note 1)
Delicate Edge Limited
(K1)
King Nordic Limited (Note 1)

King Nordic Limited (ffi#1)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

Capacity and
nature of interest

SO RERMEE

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

BalEA AR —BITHAL

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

ERBEEAR—BITHAL

2IRBELE

Mr. Lam Pang
RIS S A

Notes:

(1)

)

Beneficial owner

BAEA

i}
B

\

Beneficial owner

Fotz Z-PN

i}

\

Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code)
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited
is deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate
Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Bt
(1)

@)

FERREREMALREQRTRSG KA
RO ERERKXR

BEZME  RZT-_—F+—HA=+H " A
TALTRAR R I A8 B R0 o B SRR
EREEREARIEESF LB ERPIEXVEE2R
E3N R MEX AR AR R B WE 2 ERIXR
FARE BN IRIERE 75 N H B 151 55 336 165 /A i
ARBIFEZBRA M EEIRR °

RELATDROAEERG ZRA :

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share
(Note 2) capital
HERBZROEE GHEAATAESRITRE
(HiaE2) BHAESHE
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%

Delicate Edge Limitedfi$#8 BRI LEEEE
#H#A - MKing Nordic Limitedd & #5745
L2EEFREH ° Delicate Edge Limited &
King Nordic Limited# £ #5% 98,280,000/&
R AR R A BEITIRAAEEE25.2% °

40 4 BOW SE A R B 5E A O A B E AR

BEB—HTBALT(AWETRIETET
ZAZHE) AW REZFZFRPEK
Bl - £ B R £ - B 5 & S8 £ - Delicate
Edgelimited % King Nordic Limited# & #
# AR Delicate Edge Limited X King Nordic
Limited & £# & 2 196,560,000 % fi% 17 # ##
B#m o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2021, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered

into or in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company nor
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in any other companies as at 30 November 2021

which may, directly or indirectly compete with the Group’s business.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and
King Nordic Limited, being the controlling shareholders (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, have entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 19 September 2018 in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the Deed of
Non-Competition was set out in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non- Competition have been complied
with by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge

Limited and King Nordic Limited up to the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules since the Listing
Date and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

VBG Capital Limited (“VBG”) acted as the compliance adviser of the
Company until the termination of the compliance advisor agreement
on 28 February 2021. Save as the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and VBG, neither VBG nor its
directors, employees or close associates had any interest in relation
to the Group which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2021 were jointly audited by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants of Hong Kong and Mazars LLP, Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of Singapore. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Mazars CPA Limited and Mazars LLP as joint auditors of the
Company. There has been no change in the Group’s auditors in any
of the preceding 3 years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 30 November 2021 to the date of this annual report, save for
the Second Change in UOP as disclosed in the “CHANGE IN USE OF
PROCEEDS” under the section headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS”, the Board is not aware of any significant events that
have occurred which require disclosure herein.

On behalf of the board
Mr. Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2022
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYBEZBMERS

m

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 155, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
November 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Joint Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B OB % BLAT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
ERERSZE

Revenue recognition

W7 &R

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical accounting
estimate and judgement in Note 2 and the disclosures of

revenue in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIBM 22 = B R AT BRI KBS & AR R B A R K E4
ZEEMBRRNRKEIKE -

The Group recognised revenue of approximately
RM17,177,000 (2020: approximately RM10,011,000) from the
provision of system integration and development services,
IT outsourcing services and maintenance and consultancy

services for the year ended 30 November 2021.

EEBERREE T - F+—A=ZtTHLFEZRHEES
BERFABERE « AMBHRINABRTS LA K 415 K B8 R AR TS 2 IR
AT 177,0007T (ZE=FF : 45 %10,011,0007T) °

REELER

RRAMEZBRE 2 EXHE - BREZER
REBMEZABRZGEAVBBRRMEER
EEZER - BMEERERBEAVBRR R
HABAKREREZEERE AT EHZE
EERTERER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BARERPNIEEEHEERERSE

Our procedures, among others, included:
HMZEF (Hhe%E)RE

(a) obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s key internal controls over the contract
revenue recognition including the control over recording

work done, invoicing and cash receipts;
TREE EREHAONERR EERNIMEZE(S
FBRHETKIIE  BERRSBIREZ BEE) 2 &K - #1T
RBIERBER

(b) assessing the reasonableness of the basis and

assumptions of the estimated total contract costs;
FHEAET AR AN ER I EERRREE AR

(c) comparing actual total contract costs incurred to
estimated total contract costs of contracts completed
during the year, on a sample basis, to assess the

reasonableness of management’s estimation;

ML RFNECTRENMEE 2 ERAQR AL LM
FHAMRARE  UREEECHAREAE
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B B B BUED 3

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSZE(E)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Was R ()

Revenue from provision of system integration and
development services of approximately RM9,627,000 (2020:
approximately RM6,952,000) is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation using input method
as the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

REUEZGEARBAERSE A RERRE 2 KD 5455
9,627,0007L( = F=FF : #/F516,952,0007C ) 12T E BT
BEANBETZERBR  UEAEERERER - Harn &5
BRBAOTRATAELY BEXEEREERRRNEE B B
SEFRGFINTEANBZS ERBLORIFIEA ©

We have identified the above matter as a key audit
matter because the amount involved is significant and
management used significant judgements and estimations
to determine the progress towards complete satisfaction of

the performance obligation at the reporting date.

BMERA LA EREATREERER  RARPREHRE
R BEEERNBERHMEAERHBREHEE<2ETHE
HMBENEETZERIER -

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BAREXEES)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BERERPNTEEEHEERERSZE(E)

(d) performing arithmetical check on the schedule of
the calculation of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
under input method, on a sample basis, based on the
schedule prepared by the management with information
including contract sum, estimated total contract costs

and contract costs incurred (the “Schedule”); and

RBEREBHEZAHNTE - [EFEHRARERRE KK
AAREZERR(TEER])  HETANLLERAEE
TTHEREERSE R

(e) verifying key terms in contracts (including contract sum,
deliverables timetable and milestones), estimated total
contract costs and contract costs incurred as set out
in the Schedule, on a sample basis, to the respective
signed contracts, approved cost budgets and relevant
supporting documents of the contract costs incurred

respectively.

DRI B E V%’%FJ’T%CZAQO B ARt R AR
REKRANEPRD i&%ﬁt&$i‘§§&$ﬁ k)

HIPRAS SRS M



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B OB % BLAT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSZE(E)

BHREXEERES)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BERERPNTEEEHEERERSZE(E)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables

BEZRUFSBERZERNEEER([BREEER ) ZERRE

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical
accounting estimate and judgement in Note 2 and
the disclosures of trade receivables in Note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

REME2 2 =BG FT R A K R & et (45T B B A AR &R
162 4R A MMM K E 5 EUGRIRIFE

At 30 November 2021, the carrying amount (net of loss
allowance) of trade receivables amounted to approximately
RM8,808,000 (2020: approximately RM6,394,000),
represent 28.1% (2020: 19.4%) of the total assets of the
Group.

RZZB_—F+—A=1RH - BHRYGIAZREFENRE

B ) 45 5%8,808,0007T (= FE = F4F : #15E #6,394,000
L) REEEBEMEBEC281%(ZE-FF  #719.4%) °

Our procedures, among others, included:
BMzRF(ERBRE)RE :

(a) obtaining management’s assessment of ECL on trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of the key
underlying information referenced by the management;

and

ESERBYHREENTRBERBE G - XEE
BESIANERERESZAEE &

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &3}

63



64

INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B OB BAT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)
BRERSE(A)

BAREXEES)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BRERERPNNEEFHERERSE(E)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables (continued)

BEEWH B A EER([BAEERE ) 2 BEERE(E)

Management performed credit evaluations for the Group’s
customers and assessed ECL of trade receivables. These
assessments were focused on the customers’ settlement
record and their current repayment ability, and also
adjusted for forward-looking factors and took into account
information specific to respective customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the

customers operated.

EREYH BEEECEPETERNME LA EEBURIENE
HEEEBE ZETE2ENRTPNEECEIEEMZE
REES - UHHAEEARETRHERZRRERTF ZEER
EUARERPEEMENKEREABIES °

We have identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgements were made by the management in determining

the ECL on trade receivables.

BMERN LA EBRESTEERER  RARSRERE
RN BEEEAERERVFEMNBRESEBERIEHEAH
B o

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(b) assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the customers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such as
background information of the customers, concentration
risk of customers, the Group’s actual loss experience
(our examination of the customers’ payment records
during the current year and subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, as well as the historical collection
records), and the forward-looking factors specific to the

customers.

BBMEHEUZEZER  NEFEREN  FFPBE
ERERE  TPHMETRAR - BEEENEREBEELR
(BPERFERRSEHARE  ARELEDEEERER
FPr#EREE)REFHREFANRELES  FHER
BYHRBEEERRTPEENFIE



INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUBEZBERS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2021
annual report of the Company, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our joint auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

Hit&®

BEATESANEREANEE  HMEANEHE
A-T-—FERFRER - ELTOHE

g

=N
REMBWMR LAY FEZBE R A M B RE
HAEZHE -
ABMEZBMREEMBRRERZBERLLAD
MEHMER  RATAREEREAEALZ
B e

WEREAMBBAMS - AMERBEZE
TEMEEMER  ARFPEBEEMLEHNES
HESMBRREES -2 HEMAREZP
ERITARZERBEERNBERRAL - fif 2o
ERAET 2 TEMAEEMERN HREKRE
AREL - AIRPIARRILER - BUEAE - &
Bt fE X BRED I AR RIRR TR o

ESNARELREHGAMBRRZE

BRI ImE E R IR AR Z WER
o ARRBEABERATZEAMBHRR 14
EXRRRE A7 BN IKEF R M S 2
LERBRBRAZEAVBREMBZEBA

MEEAR -

RRAUGASMBHRRE  EFR 5N E5E
FREEZREN  BREAEFERLEZERA(A
HERRERFELERSAER  KIESREF
B BEEBRIEULLE  HHEBEEGE
BREERTR -

RERAAEE EEEZHBREBR
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYBEZBMERS

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a joint
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BECBMEERGEMBRRZEE

BPNERRYRAMBEREBERL AFHE
HRRFFRERMER c EAHERBAMSE
BRE - WHAHIKME R Z B =6
BE - BARBZBZHEGRRBUERE
[ ETE®RMNNMEEMA R - BT R
FZAR - HHEMEMATEESAERFE -

EEREBSERE  BIERARRRBELSE
FHEAET CERARERARRTECERE
AREGR o SHREM A AEFFRIBRSIE - A
BEMARERRA(E BN ERLR)AER
EREBEZEFEVBRRMELDZIQERE -
BRAERRAANFRIEERX -

RIB(EABBTEADETERS  RASESR
EZRRTERIRHHRRHERRRELE
BFITRE -
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BUBEZBERS

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our joint auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
joint auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BECBMEERGESMBRRZEE
(#)

s FHEMRAZEMBRZEBEUERESRMR
Fh @b RAEREERZAE

t o
«  HTEBRASEEERLHERRTR
B REEFERZBHERATRER

EREEXBFEREEIEATHEERE
M gERY BERERELERENE
EERRE - HEMAHAEFEEATHEE
Hx - MARBFEZBERETIRFETLIR
HEMBHmERP ZEBKE  IMBEHEZ
BESR  AIBEBIIBERMAZESR - Tfz
M ABE A E B EE BB
BBz EZBRRER - AT - RKFEIER
FIERFT G BEEBETREFELE -

s HESAMBRRIEBER HBAA
D(BEREEE)  URTESSHBR
REBUATFEE2BRZIHARREBR 5 R
%R -

e 3 BEEERNERAXBEDIHBER
EDER - BENEZRE  UWEHERS
MBREERER - RMBE BEKEFE
ZZiEE - EERAT c BRIMZE
RERAEZREE -

B (R RR)ER2a&EE  BEZH
RBREZER(BREBFIEEZT B A
ERZEMERRRE)EARERERB °
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INDEPENDENT JOINT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BYBEZBMERS

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our joint auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

BECBMEERGEMBRRZEE
(%)

HRABEREBBZIEET » RIVREMPL
ERHAHARGEEVBRRIBECRA/ER -
AmEXEREREE - ROSERE X
WERHMZFETE  BRIBDEFIHRPIELER
REZEFER  AEBEFRZBERT @ &
MEBERBEARERMER I AERRGER
HEBRARABFTHEINEAM T EERSH
KEASERR

communication.

Mazars CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong

42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

28 February 2022

The engagement director of
Mazars CPA Limited on the
audit jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate number:
P07321

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Mazars LLP

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants of
Singapore

135 Cecil Street

#10-01

Singapore 069536

28 February 2022

The engagement partner of
Mazars LLP on the audit
jointly resulting in this
independent joint auditors’

report is:

Tan Chee Tyan

PERR(EB) S BEERETEE
MERMERAR =EES T
BB EEEAD EIIE a0

BB KT B AT
T 37 IN4 069536 EL [
S 81855 44 4514713555
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEEkEMEZERER

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE - -—F+—A=+HILFE

2020
—TTF
Notes RM’000
Hfat ST
Revenue L& 4 17,177 10,011
Cost of services and materials sold AR5 & B B M RLB A (14,472) (8,524)
Gross profit EA 2,705 1,487
Other income HAbgA 5 252 216
Administrative expenses TR 2 (9,104) (9,825)
Finance costs BLE AR 6 (72) (83)
Impairment loss on intangible assets TZEERERE 14 — (2,226)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 2B FIRREEE 28 — (761)
Loss before income tax BRETEBAIE 1B 6 (6,219) (11,192)
Income tax expenses Frig i 9 (48) =
Loss for the year FEBE (6,267) (11,192)
Other comprehensive Hi2m (B ) Wz
(expenses) income
Item that may be reclassified HIZrpEEF DI Z B
subsequently to profit or loss ZIEE
Exchange difference on translation of REEINIB AR ZELEZR
foreign subsidiaries (22) 36
Total comprehensive expenses for FEZHEARX
the year (6,289) (11,156)
Loss per share, BRERE(ERR#HE)
basic and diluted (RM cents) (F¥2) 10 (1.61) (2.87)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B R R AR

At 30 November 2021 R-Z-—F+—HA=+H

2020
ZETF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hfat BE¥Tx BrETIT
Non-current assets FERENEE

Property, plant and equipment M - I RRE 12 1,851 2,185
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 974 838
Intangible assets EEE 14 3,060 2,977
5,885 6,000

Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E M EK IR 16 9,590 7,524
Contract assets BREE 17 287 166
Restricted bank balances ZIR BRI TS B 18 466 309
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIR® 19 15,089 18,876
25,432 26,875

Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 KRE A B FRIA 20 11,631 5,800
Contract liabilities ARAaE 17 828 2,144
Income tax payables FERT ARG R 978 1,026
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 21 853 853
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 237 223
14,527 10,046

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B R R &R

At 30 November 2021 R-Z-—F+—H=+H

2020
—TTF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hat BT EMTFT
Net current assets REBEEFE 10,905 16,829
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 16,790 22,829
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 22 31 12
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 974 743
1,005 7515
NET ASSETS EEFE 15,785 22,074
Capital and reserves EAR
Share capital e 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves it 13,718 20,007
TOTAL EQUITY fEmiaE 15,785 22,074
These consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 155 were FOOB R 15BEFIEGEAMBHRRN_EE_—
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 ZAZTNREEESSHERBETE  WH
February 2022 and signed on its behalf by THEERREE
Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James
SEER 21583
Director Director
£ e

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &3} 71



72

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDZBER

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE - -—F+—A=+HIFE

Reserves
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
e RiDEE ERGER B X @ 28 &t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
BT BT Vi Vi o BT Vi o
(Note 23)  (Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Wi23)  (Hidzs@)  (Hzzsw)  (Hi2s)
At 1 December 2019 R-E-AEF-A-R 2,067 28,732 4,952 (354) (2,167) 33,230
Loss for the year ERBE — — = = (11,192) (11,192)
Other comprehensive income: At 2E W -
ltem that may be reclassified -V T vy e o
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Exchange difference on translation of ~ AHESNEAR
foreign subsidiaries ZERER — — = 36 = 36
Total comprehensive expenses ERREERX
for the year i — — 36 (11,192) (11,156)
At 30 November 2020 W ZZ-85+-A=+1H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (318) (13,359) 22,074

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE - -—F+—A=+HILFE

Reserves
fife
Share Share Capital Exchange Accumulated
(EIE] premium reserve reserve losses
A& R aE EAfRE B 2 ER
RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM’000
-1 59 -1 59 -1 59 -1 59 -1 5o -1 5o
(Note 23)  (Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Wi23)  (Hitosa)  (Hateew)  (Hi2s(c)
At 1 December 2020 R-F_FE+_f—H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (318) (13,359) 22,074
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - (6,267) (6,267)
Other comprehensive expenses: A2 ERX
ltem that may be reclassified b0 Tl T vy et
subsequently to profit or loss ZEH
Exchange difference on translation of ~ BEESNEAR
foreign subsidiaries ZERER — — - (22) — 22)
Total comprehensive expenses ERREERX
for the year — — — (22) (6,267) (6,289)
At 30 November 2021 W-B2=-%+-A=tH 2,067 28,732 4,952 (340) (19,626) 15,785
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMRNER

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE —Z - —F+—F=+HILFE

2020
—TTF
RM’000 RM’000
BT M or
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BESES
Loss before income tax FRETISHIRTEE (6,219) (11,192)
Adjustments for: BTFEA (ELTHE
Amortisation i 2,782 1,930
Depreciation e 810 623
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmAERERIE — 2,226
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 RWGIBRERE — 761
Exchange difference ENER (22) 36
Interest income AEWA (190) (156)
Interest expenses FMERXZ 72 83
Cash flows used in operations before REBESBHA 2 EE
movements in working capital FAZRERE (2,767) (5,689)
Change in working capital: KEESE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e W SRR (2,105) 1,330
Contract assets and liabilities BREEREE (1,437) 11,228
Restricted bank balances ZRGIRITAE R (157) 399
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M A 5,831 (588)
Cash (used in) generated from EE(TREEZERE
operations (635) 6,680
Income tax paid ENFTEH (77) (209)
Net cash (used in) from operating RETEH (A ELE
activities ZEEFE (712) 6,471
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE -
equipment Hezs MR (116) (39)
Additions to intangible assets NEELEE (2,865) (3,685)
Interest received ELAGS) 190 156

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMRER

Year ended 30 November 2021 HE - -—F+—A=+HILFE

2021 2020
= =z 02
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
HizE BT ST
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMAZREFEHE (2,791) (3,568)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings BEFEEE 26(b) _ (4)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE 26(b) (212) (202)
Interest paid ERAE (72) (83)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETBAAZRESFEE (284) (289)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERBELEEYZ
cash equivalents OR A ) o0 % 58 (3,787) 2,614
Cash and cash equivalents at REHI2HER
the beginning of the reporting period REZEY 18,876 16,262
Cash and cash equivalents at the end BREHRZRERRESE
of the reporting period, represented BY » UBRITHEBRR
by bank balances and cash HE275 15,089 18,876
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 27 February 2018. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 October 2018. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 1802,
18/F, Ruttonjee House, Ruttonjee Centre, 11 Duddell Street,
Central, Hong Kong. The Group’s headquarter is situated at
B-7-7, Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang

Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding
company. The Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

RAERRRREE

Mindtell Technology Limited ([ A2
AR E-—NF-_A-f+tHEHS
HEEMAXLREREER DA » K
RABHR_E-—NFTAZ+TZBE
EEBMERSMAER DA BRARD
GEM L7 RARGEMMPER 2 IR
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands @+ EH/ B E E & £ i
BRAABRRBENE 11 REIA
DERBAKNE18#E1802FE - A £E
EALAB-7-7, Sky Park @ One City,
Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya,
Selangor, Malaysia °
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Malaysian
Ringgit (“RM”) and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest

thousand (“RM’000”), unless otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the basis consistent with accounting policies adopted in 2020
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the
new/revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective
from the current year or the Group elected to early adopt in

the current year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

FESTHE
aRENR

HEHFEPBHRRCREHBER SR
ZEe((EREtEAZREE ) BB
BRHBREE((BERMBREEL])
HABR e EALZEaRh2MBEER
R BB R E LR - RS ER
(TEBREER ) RRENGHE) R E
Pl ZHBERERE - WELRAMBRE
TR & B 2 PR GEME % £ 1 #R B ([ GEM
ETFRAUDZERKERE -

GAMBHRRAFTE(TEEDZE7 - kK
SEHAN - BRI REERA T
(TFREETITl) -

LEGAVBRRDRE_FE_TFHES
BRI FARAN G ERR —ROEER
2 ERMEAEEABEREAFER
EMRANEBERBRFNAFEE RN ZH
A1/ RAERT B B S iR S R AR OD ©
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised IFRSs:

Amendments to Definition of Material

IASs 1 and 8
Amendments to IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IFRSs 7 and 9 — Phase 1

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June
2021

Amendments to IASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the

definition used across IFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the
market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the
replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark). In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging

relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an

acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
are lease modifications and allow lessees to account for such
rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. It
applies to COVID-19-related rent concessions that reduce lease
payments due on or before 30 June 2022. The amendments do

not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application permitted. The
Group has elected to early adopt the amendments in the current
year. In accordance with the transition provisions therein,
the amendments have been applied retrospectively by the
Group recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses and therefore the comparative information

has not been restated.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

FESHBE#E)
RN ET RIS AT B R B IS 3R o5 2 B (48)

BRI T 3R R B3 25T & - 5
ZES
AZEEANHPBRETRHIER
WA EREBRIER T B EE SR
1Al e

RNZ S AHEE VBRI L EEM
EXTE -

BB B &R E16 5 25574 | =&
——FEXNA=+H#EBCOVID-196E 1
SEH

BEZSEIA  AREAREEEER
COVID-19% 55| BN BERES AM
EBETR - ATRRBERELNER - BREE
HEBHSESERIEEEBITAR - B
ARE-ZE-_—FXNA=1+HZRE HH
AEMZRTHRERCOVID-19BEMAE S
BE  HEARZEBEIAN - HAATR

ALEERIATE -

ZEEIAER_E=—FWA—HAZ®Z
‘AR EERERAD - BIFAREATR
A AEEEERAFRREMRBZEFE
FIAR o IRIBEPABIEGX - AEEEE
PREAZEET - BERERZFERTH
REFERALY R BRI E RN
o R WESIILRERN -

ERZFEIAHEEVBHRR L EEM

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &3}

79



80

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements is historical cost.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as that of the Company using consistent

accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue

to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from owners
of the Company, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in event of liquidation, are measured initially either at
fair value or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value, unless another

measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having

a deficit balance.
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interest (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date

when control is lost.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements, investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of the subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and/or receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the period in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method. Where
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable

basis and depreciated separately:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 2.5 - 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which

the item is derecognised.
Intangible assets
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to
complete the development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised
in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. When the asset
is available for use, the capitalised development costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years. For
intangible assets yet to be available for use, they are stated at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial asset but it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade

receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income; (iii) equity
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business model for
managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period

following the change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

(M

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
at FVPL:

(i it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and

(if)  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances

and bank balances and cash.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the

financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS
9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
(“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
and contract assets to which the impairment requirements apply
in accordance with IFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments
as detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that

financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS

9 (continued)
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of

the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more

shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii)  nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS
9 (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial

instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group); or
(i)  thereis abreach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEEFEBER#
Financial instruments (continued) SWMIAE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS RIBEIRE R iR ERI BT B2 B
9 (continued) BEEREREMBEEL (&)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk 1= BB R 02 i
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument ThemIEEERRBVRERAKE
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group BHEELNE  AEESEREMIAR

compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into account in

the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if

BEARBELEENCARESRT AR
MERAHBELEENZAR - (FHFRE
5o AEEgERAERAIKHEZES
%Hﬁﬂ'ﬁ%L&W%&ﬂuAﬁﬁ
KRB HERZAELEER - LEER
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HFE

s ERTAZIEHAFEEFTR(A
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available); M
. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the . BEEALEEEALHRERKBHRZ
operating results of the debtor; and BERER K&

o actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, except for the
receivables for which the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that previous non-payments were
an administrative oversight, instead of resulting from financial
difficulty of the borrower, or that there is no correlation between
significant increases in the risk of a default occurring and
financial assets on which payments are more than 30 days

past due.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS
9 (continued)

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii)  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow

obligations.

Other receivables, restricted bank balances and bank balances

and cash are determined to have low credit risk.
Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, without a significant
financing component or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EFEEHHE#)
Financial instruments (continued) SWMIAE)
Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS RIBEIRE R iR ERI BT B2 B
9 (continued) BEEREREMBEEL (&)
Credit-impaired financial asset EERELHEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about

the following events:
(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep

discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows
on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group
has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The Group
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice
if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is

as follows:

(i) system integration and development services
(if)  IT outsourcing services

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or services
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a
performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer

either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) aseries of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to

the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if

both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service either
on its own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the good or service is

capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from other promises
in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the good or

service is distinct within the context of the contract).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHBE®SE)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer controls

as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from system integration and development services
and consultancy services is recognised over time because
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Sales of externally acquired/purchased hardware and software
for system integration and development services is recognised
at a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time when

the goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

IT outsourcing services income is recognised over time when

services are rendered.

Maintenance services income is recognised over time on a

straight-line basis over the life of the related agreements.

For revenue recognised over time under IFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the input method (i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date as compared
to the estimated total inputs) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation because
there is a direct relationship between the Group’s inputs and
the transfer of control of goods or services to the customers
and reliable information is available to the Group to apply the
method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure

the outcome of the performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHBE®SE)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component
(i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised consideration for the effects of the time value of
money. The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense separately

from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract

inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate
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in advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the =R o

Group’s borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness

information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect
of the significant financing component if the period of financing

is one year or less.
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) in case of credit- impaired financial assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract is
presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s
right to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage

of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts
are not presented on a net basis.

In accordance with the standard payment schedules of the
Group, payments are normally not due or received from the
customer until the services are completed or when the goods are
delivered. However, for such transactions, revenue is recognised
over time and therefore, a contract asset is recognised until
it becomes a receivable or payments are received. During that
period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will
be included in the contract asset and recognised as interest
income.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RM because the Group’s transactions are
mainly conducted in RM, which is the functional currency of the
operating subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia. The Company’s
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency (“
foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

o income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate.

° all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

° on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit

or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

° on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling
interests in that foreign operation and are not reclassified

to profit or loss; and

° on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share of the
cumulative amount of exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is reclassified to profit

or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is
any indication that its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, intangible assets and the Company’s investment
in a subsidiary may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In addition, the Group tests
its intangible assets that are yet to be available for use for
impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an annual
basis or whenever there is an indication that those assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of intangible assets not yet available for use is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU”)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an income

in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant

relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration
that is allocated to the separately identified components of the

contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHBE®SE)
Leases (continued) HE#E)
As lessee (continued) ERBREN ()

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:
(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) anyleases payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use
asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over

the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

ERREERRAVGE - 8%

(a) HEBEMVHIESHE:

(b) MFtRBHZ A ATENEMEE
R ORERZRBRNEERS

(c) AEBELZEMIVBEEKAL
K

(d) AKBERFHREBREBEE &
REMESHXBEBEERES
TH B 16K R 1 1 P 22 SR e RO s BT
EENRBFRA - RIFZFRAT]
REEFEMESL °

H - ERREERRAREMNREITE
REMRFREEBERNE  UnBEEAE
MEFREHNTEFELAE - TEREEH
HEREEENGFAERFHNREE
BRESAMFHBE(RIFEENHERE
MR EENMERERTASER
e AEEENRARRANEEBITER
BER—RUERT @ TERIZAREER
AET A EAERERRE) T

Office premises Over the term of lease WA RIBEHA
Motor vehicles 5 years B 5%
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of MERERILIFNEHMSE B BAZMHHHA

the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement

date of the contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),

less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the

incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments

made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the

Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

FESHBER#E)
HEE)
ERRBA (&)

HEABEFEMRENHEENKEREAT
WARHEERIAB A EEFAEX
TEIFRIE ¢

(a) BEENK(BREGMEBEEMNNK)
BIEREKHERS

(b) BURREHEIFEXMEZAIEEE
R

(c) RENSKEBEERBHEHTINZ
TR

(d) AEBABE®BEST
B: R

(e) MHEEHRMAKBETHBEEER
WHARE - &IFHE 2 FT5K -

FERERZITE

HMENRREEFRSOFEETHR -
ﬁﬁ$“@%§i%ﬂ$’%ﬁ%%ﬁA

EERFE -

BETR - BBIEMBEEEARREES B
B3 58 B R A BR N E A R BR B S S ) R
B - FFEHEALE -

ﬁ SHHREHYABHIEAEEARE
BEBEITEREEMSIEE
MM% RERGETRRXHYEER
BETEHE °



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee, the
in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating
interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Group

remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of

the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative standalone price as

described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified

contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use assets to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to

the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a

corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided in
Amendments to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 and does not assess whether eligible rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modification. The Group accounts for any
change in lease payments resulting from the rent concession
the same way it would account for the change applying IFRS

16 if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic

and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately

preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to
all eligible rent concessions with similar characteristics and in

similar circumstances.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred
tax arising from initial recognition of goodwill, or other asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will net reverse

in the foreseeable future.
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group,

that is defined as:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the holding company of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a group of which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to

the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of

the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the holding company of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets based on the experience of actual useful lives
of assets of similar nature and functions or expected useful lives
of assets, after taking into account of estimated technology life
cycle. The estimated useful lives could be different as a result of
technical innovations which could affect the related depreciation

and amortisation charges included in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are impaired when an indication of impairment exists or when
annual impairment testing is required. This requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or the value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the management to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Any impairment will be

charged to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit
in the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine the

incremental borrowing rate.
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss rate.
The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and contract assets. Details of the
key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue from system integration and
development services and consultancy services over time
by reference to the progress of satisfaction of performance
obligations of each project at the reporting date. The progress is
determined based on actual inputs, such as staff costs, deployed
on each project and the respective input costs comparing to the
estimated total service costs of each project by tracing to the
contracts signed with respective customers. The computation
of the progress and estimation of total service costs for each

project require the use of judgement and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHBE®E)

BB R E R 2 R REE
REELFREVHBHRERER - XEEW
EIREEMNBR e ERESSE B MIE
not yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not RAFEE M ARERZ TINFE] EIERTE
early adopted. BREF T 3R 2R o

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 B & TR 395

Future changes in IFRSs

At the date of approving these consolidated financial statements,

the IASB has issued the following new/revised IFRSs that are

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - MEREENE-—F=

Phase 2! Bill Sy s E -2
ET5 - FORRE6HL
EHEN
Amendments to IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use ? BeHERNF165 7B A BIERTHEINFSE
RIE?

Amendments to IAS 37
Amendments to IFRS 3

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
Amendments to 1AS 1
Amendments to 1AS 1

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 12

IFRS 17
Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework 2

2018-2020 Cycle 2

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current ®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies ®

Definition of Accounting Estimates ®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction ®

Insurance Contracts ®

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS
9 - Comparative Information ®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ¢

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
4 The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new/

revised IFRSs in future periods will have any material impact

on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being identified as the chief operating decision makers (the
“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
or services provided. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable

segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments are:

(i) system integration and development services;
(if)  IT outsourcing services; and

(iii)  maintenance and consultancy services.
Segment revenue and results

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from the system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Segment results represent the gross profit reported by each
segment without allocation of other income, administrative
expenses, finance costs, impairment loss on intangible assets
and trade receivables and income tax expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM of the Group for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the
CODM for review.

In addition, the Group’s place of domicile is Malaysia, where

the central management and control is located.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

2 EER
Fﬂﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%(ﬁﬂ?&é&%@ﬁl%
REE ([ ZBEERK %J)E#ﬁzzﬁﬂ
RERNERFEDBERAMS - FE
EXNHRHE Y RBRE AR - R
BASEA 2R M - TERESETEE
BERREBRN 2 EEDE -

4

}

AREmME  AEEZAU2HEREEED

(i) EREENMEAERS
(i) EBERRBINHIRS : &
(i)  #ERERRE
DB EREE

i%%’ﬁ*ﬁz 2 AT BUR A M IS R T EE2
Mz AKE 2 EABRR - -

DEM IR R B R E A RAERYE - &
AR SN HIBR TS IA Ko 4 1E B R AR 7S BR (S
ZYzs e

DESEREEE DB EREM - MAILARD
ez WA - 1T - RERAE - &
WEEKE S REFIBRERBIE RSN
fx - RERSERKRBEFETS @ b
MAEE T RLEERREZRLTE °

HRAEEZREEIHEA D2 EERAE
ﬂzﬂmﬁﬁ}zf EEBBARELENTS
R E 2R E $

dboh - AREE Z PR RS R A - B
REERIEH 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. oWBERGE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEU IR R EE(E)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable REE-_Z-_—Fk-_ZT-_ZTF+—F=
segments for the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020 is THIEFE  RAE2FHHREZLER

as follows: RERBZBERDAT :
System
integration Maintenance
and IT and
development outsourcing consultancy
services services services
ZHBAR ERRE BER
RERRE ShHIRRAE B R
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000
V-1 500 V-1 50 V-1 500 V-1 &
Year ended 30 November 2021 BE-E--F+-A=tHLEE
Revenue from external customers and RENPEE 2 Wam kA 2R P
reportable segment revenue 13,518 2,866 793 17,177
Reportable segment results ERDBEE 972 1,156 577 2,705
Other information: RMEH -
Amortisation B4 2,782 - - 2,782
Addition of intangible assets NEBWEE 2,865 - - 2,865
Year ended 30 November 2020 HE-Z-THF+-A=THLEE
Revenue from external customers and REMPEP 2 Wz KA 2R Pl
reportable segment revenue 8,084 1,086 841 10,011
Reportable segment results AERHPEE 133 538 816 1,487
Other information: HEWEH :
Amortisation B 1,930 = = 1,930
Addition of intangible assets REEWEE 3,685 = = 3,685
Impairment loss on intangible assets EWEAERERE 2,226 = = 2,226
Impairment loss on trade receivables B o RUGEREER 811 = (50) 761

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (the “Specified Non-current
Assets”). The geographical location of revenue is based on the
location of external customers. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-current Assets is based on the physical location
of the assets (in the case of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, the location of operation to which they
are located, in the case of intangible assets, the location of

operations).

(a) Revenue from external customers

D EE R (4)
B E R

TR BEBOAKERBIBES Z
Wa: RONDANEBEZWE  #EZER
W ERARBEEUAREREE(IBEHE
RBEENZHBUEZEN - WEZ
WEMEDRBINEEL ZMLEME °
FEFRRBEECHWBEUENREEE
CERUE(NEBYE  HBBERREN
REREEE  WEMREEIMNE
NWEENEE  ARBEEZMNE)ME

(a) KEINBEFZ WKz

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RM’000 RM’000

B¥Tr ETFor

Indonesia e 158 =
Malaysia BRFLE 17,004 10,011
Singapore AN 15 —
17,177 10,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. ZEERE)
Geographical information (continued) HEER(E)
(b) Specified Non-current Assets (b)) BEHFREEE
At 30 November 2021 and 2020, all the Specified Non- RZE-_—FR-_ZFT_ZFTF+—A
current Assets are located in Malaysia. =1+H - FEREFRDEELRN
BT o
Information about major customers FRETEEFZER
Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or REENEBASEEHE T -—_—F K=
more of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 30 T_EF+—A=tHIEFEzRKZ
November 2021 and 2020 is as follows: 10% A L2 BFE 2T
2021 2020
—E-—f§ —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥TT HETFT
Customer A EFEA 6,000 =
Customer B =FB 4,834 5,006
Customer C BFC 2,929 1,277
Customer D =FD (Note) 1,252
Note: The customer individually did not contribute 10% or more of the Wt ZBEFRERFETEFENERMAEE
total revenue of the Group for the relevant year. B ER10% KA E °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 &z —F —

REVENUE 4. WEH
2021 2020
—E=-—f —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
F¥Fr EEToT
Revenue from contracts with customers Bl % B 745 i o5 R BI S 1 55 P 4
within IFRS 15 ZEPAafsER
System integration and AREE RFAERY
development services:
Services provided Frhe 4 AR 75 9,627 6,952
Sales of externally acquired/ HEINDUEE, BB ZE M
purchased hardware and software N 3,891 1,132
13,518 8,084
IT outsourcing services BRI AR 2,866 1,086
Maintenance and consultancy services & K B BRTS 793 841
17,177 10,011
2021 2020
—B_—fF —TTF
RM’000 RM’'000
BT ST T
Timing of revenue recognition: Wz SR IS ETIE -
At a point in time F—H 2 3,891 1,132
Over time & A 13,286 8,879
17,177 10,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

5. OTHER INCOME H A
2021 2020
—EZ—fF —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BT
Government grant BT FE BN 55 52
Interest income B U A 190 156
Others HAmh 7 8
252 216
6. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX BRATEHATE R
This is stated after charging: BRPTS TR E IR AR T SIEAE ¢
2021 2020
—EB-—F ZEITF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥TFr BT
Finance costs RE A
Interest expenses on interest-bearing FTEEBEZHMEMAKX
borrowings 20 34
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEREBZHEER 52 49
72 83
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued) 6. BRAASHAIEE®)
2021 2020
—E=-—f —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr EEFir
Staff costs and related expenses ETINAREBMX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESHM)
Salaries, allowances and e R REMEYRET
other benefits in kind 7,118 7,077
Contributions to defined contribution plans B FETEI 2 629 602
7,747 7,679
Represented by: (A
Staff costs for administrative and sales staff TENIEEE T 2 B TRA 1,851 1,912
Staff costs for IT staff included in BB B THETAA -
administrative expenses FFAITHAY 1,868 1,930
Staff costs allocated to “Cost of services” EREEEIREKA ]z B TR 3,863 3,741
Staff costs charged to profit or loss FTABZEZ 8 TR 7,582 7,583
Staff costs capitalised as BEERMRIEREE]
“Intangible assets” Z B 165 96
7,747 7,679
Other items HihEH
Amortisation of intangible assets, ERAERH
included in administrative expenses (GFATTHRE ) 2,782 1,930
Auditors’ remuneration X GliEaa )| 459 515
Cost of materials sold B EM B A 3,467 912
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - HESREBEITE
equipment 450 321
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 360 302
Exchange loss, net SNEE B3 18558 1 38
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EEME
In addition to the directors’ fee, certain directors of the Company BREEHREIN  ARRZHETESTREZE
received remuneration from the Group during the years ended 30 —E - —FRZTETF+—-—A=1+HL
November 2021 and 2020 for their appointment as employees of FERNEBARSBWEEB - MEAKSE
these entities. The aggregate amounts of remuneration received BZERUEFEREE ZHFMH - REZE=
and receivable by the directors of the Company during the years T —FRZT_TF+—A=THIF
ended 30 November 2021 and 2020 are set out below. BEAR @ ARAREFEWRRERFTI 25
BEEINAT o
Year ended 30 November 2021 BE-ZE-—S+—-A=+HLFE

Salaries,
allowances Contributions

and other to defined

Directors’ benefits in  Discretionary  contribution

fees kind bonus plans
e Rl
REft TR
BNER WA 2
RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RM’000 RM’000
V-7 A0 BEFr F¥Fr BT BEFL
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping BEELE - 381 - 9 390
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 28 B%4E - 254 - 9 263
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang AR L - 191 - - 191
Mr. Lam Pang WIS L& - 191 — — 191
Independent non-executive BYFHATEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping RAETEE - 70 - - 70
Mr. Su Chi Wen BRIk - 70 - - 70
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella MEZENT — 70 — — 70
— 1,227 - 18 1,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

7.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7. EEME®
Year ended 30 November 2020 HE-_Z-_ZTF+—A=+HLFE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits in - Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total
e o2E
REM kil
EEHS EMER [l AL 5t
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
FEFT FETT FETT FEFT iid S
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping BEWAE = 361 = 9 370
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2BHEE = 254 = 9 263
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang LA = 191 = = 191
Mr. Lam Pang Nt = 191 = = 191
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping BRETRE = 70 = = 70
Mr. Su Chi Wen BEXEE = 70 = = 70
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella MEZLL = 70 = = 70
‘3 1,207 - 18 1,225

During the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30 November
2021 and 2020.

REBEZE-ZE-_—FR-ZF-TF+—HA=
THIEFE  AEEREREAZEES
SAAEB - SAEARSIE A SR INAZ
SBE 2B SMERHBEME - BiE
EENELIREREREE_S_—FK
—E-TFA+—A=+HILFEZEMA
LH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8.

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 30 November 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

EFEBREHFALT

RNEE-—Z-_—FR-_ZT-_ZTF+—HF=
+THLEFE  AEmeFALTZHMM
T

Number of individuals

2020
T
Director o]
Non-director FESE
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid non-

director individuals are as follows:

P& EHIFEREALZHFHFBET

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF

RM’000 RM’000
B¥For HEEFT

Salaries, allowances and other e RERHEMEYET
benefits in kind 715 677
Contributions to defined contribution plans  FEZEME TS 2 H3R 78 49
793 726

The number of these non-director individuals whose emoluments

fell within the following emoluments band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

WEFEEALZHMENF TS EE
ZANBIT

During the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest
paid non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. None
of these highest paid non-director individuals waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30
November 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 &z —F —

—5+—A=+AILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. FRBBIEAX
2021 2020
—E-—f —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr BT
Current tax BPER B 18
Malaysia corporate income tax BRFARBEMER
(“Malaysia CIT”) ([FBRAERFEMSR]) 29 —
Deferred tax EERE 19 =
Total income tax expenses REERMEHBAEAE
for the year 48 i

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are exempted from income
tax. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived from

Hong Kong.

Malaysia CIT is calculated at 24% of the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 30 November 2021. Malaysia
incorporated entities with paid-up capital of RM2.5 million or
less enjoy tax rate of 17% on the first RM600,000 and remaining
balance of the estimated assessable profits at tax rate of 24%
for the year ended 30 November 2021. Malaysia CIT has not
been provided as the Group incurred a loss for taxation purpose
for the year ended 30 November 2020.

RRASHENABRANE ([ RERZE
SDRIZEEERERCHNE ARG
B ARAKEYENL B BFBELER
Bl Al - B B E B RS AT IR

BRAGTEMEHRABE_S_—F+
— A=+ HIEFERMEFERT &M 2
24%EHE - HREXR R FH2,500,0007T
AT ERATCEEEREE—T—
ZFE+— A=+ H L FE A ERTE
Z B2 E%600,000T R R17%EF
MERRE IR T R 24% M - AR AEBERE
E_E_TFE+—A=1+BHILEFEHRTE
EEEE - WUERSRATLEMSH
HREE -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. (“Mixsol”) has obtained the pioneer status
effective from 23 September 2011. A pioneer status company is
eligible for exemption from income tax on eligible activities and
products for five years and subject to submitting a formal request
to the Malaysia Investment Development Authority on or prior
to expiration date and upon the Ministry of International Trade
and Industry confirming that Mixsol has been complying with
all the applicable conditions as imposed, the tax relief period
shall be extended for a further five years after each five-year
tax relief period ends.

The pioneer status for Mixsol has been renewed during the
year ended 30 November 2016 and was expired on 30 June
2021. Upon the expiration of pioneer status, Mixsol is subject
to Malaysia CIT since 1 July 2021.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

R (&)

Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. ([ Mixsol]) B E45 5T &
I BT ——FALA-F+=B#&
AR e BT ¥ 2 A ABRKARTA
FHREREFDRERESHERHHR - F
B Em B Bk 2 AR BRI &R
RBRRXEXNEFE  ERBEBEESMITER
EREBTHEMZETE BRGNS - RE
FAFRMEBERE RPN E—FPER
RE o

Mixsol BT B T ¥R T — ~F+—
A=THILFEREH  IR=_FT=—%F
NA=ZTBER - RIEIFEMNER
% ' Mixsol BZZ=—FtA—HEH
BB RADERER o

Reconciliation of income tax expenses FREHREZ 2 HEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RM’000 RM’000
BETFrT BHEFT
Loss before income tax R PTG 30 Al B 18 (6,219) (11,192)
Income tax at applicable tax rate RERABEAE G (1,380) (2,288)
Non-deductible expenses EE R 1,205 1,922
Tax-exempt revenue A 4) (12)
Unrecognised tax losses RUERTIIEEIE 231 426
Others Hith (4) (48)
Income tax expenses Frisfim s 48 —

The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities operate
against profit or loss before tax. The change in applicable tax
rate is caused by changes in the taxable results of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective countries in which the Group
operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

10.

11.

LOSS PER SHARE 10. BRERE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to owners of the Company is based on the following information:

AREHERANBIEERAREEBRTIRE
AT BB E -

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —T-THF
RM’000 RM’000
-4--& 5 BT
Loss for the year attributable to the owners ~ FR{EFFEEREAR K
of the Company, used in basic and diluted #EBEEEZ KRR F
loss per share calculation B AELER (6,267) (11,192)
Number of shares
BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary REAESRERREEER 2
shares for basic and diluted L imAR NiE T AR
loss per share calculation 390,000,000 390,000,000

Diluted loss per share are same as the basic loss per share
as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDENDS 11.

The directors of the Group did not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 30 November 2021 (2020: Nil).

HRBE_Z-_—FR-_Z-ZTF+—H
erEJJ:iJ* WEEMEBEETZE

ZEAEK  SREEEEREGRENER
GEICT
9=\

AEEESVITERRBEE—_S—_—F+
—A=Z1+BLEFERNAPRE(=ZF=
T HE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - HBERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  and office Motor Computer
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicle  equipment Total
BE KER
BF RENEEE  HLERR RE EERE At

RM000 RM000 AM000 AM000 AM000 RM000
BEkTr  BETT  BETn RETr BRTn BETR

Reconciliation of carrying amount BB %% —
- Year ended 30 November ~ BZ-Z-FF+-A

2020 =HALER
At 1 December 2019 RZE-NF+-fA—H 1,251 57 103 778 1,056 3,245
Adjustment upon adoption of  RAVERRE B3R5 A

IFRS 16 165 REE = = = (778) = (778)
Additions RE = = = = 39 39
Depreciation nE (28) (11) (5) = (277) (321)
At 30 November 2020 RZZ-TET-A=1H 1,223 46 98 = 818 2,185

Reconciliation of carrying REEHE-
amount - Year ended 30 HE-Z--£1-8

November 2021 =tALEE
At 1 December 2020 WZE-ZTF+-F-H 1,223 46 98 - 818 2,185
Additions NE - - 13 - 103 116
Depreciation nE (28) (12) U} - (403) (450)
At 30 November 2021 RZB2=-£+-A=1H 1,195 34 104 - 518 1,851
At 30 November 2020 RZE-TET-A=1H
Cost KA 1,390 112 267 — 1,331 3,100
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (167) (66) (169) = (513) (915)
1,223 46 98 — 818 2,185
At 30 November 2021 R=Z2=-%+t-A=tH
Cost kA 1,390 112 280 - 1,434 3,216
Accumulated depreciation RitiE (195) (78) (176) — (916) (1,365)
1,195 34 104 - 518 1,851
At 30 November 2020, the carrying amounts of the Group’s motor RZT—NF+= A — BN %R
vehicles held under finance leases amounted to approximately SRR RZTZEF+—A=1+HR
RM778,000 were presented under right-of-use assets upon the BREHERBZASERE ZREELD
adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 December 2019. 778,000t EAEEEE T2 °
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Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

13. EAKEEREEESR

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
WAEYE RE st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
EEFir BT BT
Reconciliation of carrying BREE ¥ AR —
amount — Year ended 30 HE-_Z-_TF+—A8
November 2020 =THIEFE
At 1 December 2019 RZZT—hF+=A—H — — —
Upon adoption of IFRS 16 FRANBIK BF 75 3R & 28]
F165518 168 778 946
Addition NE — 194 194
Depreciation e (115) (187) (302)
At 30 November 2020 R-ZZE_ZF+—HA=+H 53 785 838
Reconciliation of carrying BREEH K-
amount — Year ended 30 BE-ZT——F
November 2021 +—A=1+HILEE
At 1 December 2020 R=E-_FTF+=-A—H 53 785 838
Addition NE 196 317 513
Depreciation e (101) (259) (360)
Contract termination B HRIE (17) — (17)
At 30 November 2021 R-—ZE-_—F+—H=+H 131 843 974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

13. EAKEERBEREE®

Right-of-use assets (continued) FEREESEE)
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
A NELYE S RE st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BT BT BT
At 30 November 2020 WZZE-ZF+—-H=+H
Cost XA 168 1,327 1,495
Accumulated depreciation — ZEFHITE (115) (542) (657)
Net carrying amount ARTEDF A 53 785 838
At 30 November 2021 R-B=-—-%+—A=+H
Cost [B%N 196 1,644 1,840
Accumulated depreciation — ZEFFIFE (65) (801) (866)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 131 843 974
Lease liabilities HEAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T4
RM’000 RM’000
BETr HEFr
Current portion mENEL S 237 223
Non-current portion FETRBE D 974 743
1,211 966

The Group leases various office premises and motor vehicles for
its operation and the lease terms ranging from two to nine years
(2020: one to nine years). The total cash outflow for lease was
approximately RM264,000 (2020: approximately RM251,000) for

the year ended 30 November 2021.

At 30 November 2021, the weighted average effective interest

rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 4.3% per annum

(2020: 4.8%).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

NEBERESER AL RS R TEAHE
EB2A AN T _EAERE(=F
ZEF —ENF) RBE-ZZT=_—%F
+—RA=1tBELLEE  HENESRLA
B ABK264,000L(ZF=FF - 45
#251,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. EEE

Internally
developed

technologies

PR B B 2 B
RM’000
o

Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended 30 fREEHKR -—HE T -TF

November 2020 +T—A=THLEFE

At 1 December 2019 RZZE—NE+=-F—H 3,448
Additions NE 3,685
Amortisation i3] (1,930)
Impairment loss EE R (2,226)
At 30 November 2020 RZZT_ZTF+—HA=+H 2977

Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended MREEHKR-BE—Z=-—F

30 November 2021 +—A=tHLEE
At 1 December 2020 RZZT=FTF+=A—H 2,977
Additions NE 2,865
Amortisation B (2,782)
At 30 November 2021 R=B=—-F+—HA=+H 3,060
At 30 November 2020 R-ZE-_ZF+—-—H=+H
Cost DN 8,382
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss RETH# S RO E R 1E (5,405)
2,977
At 30 November 2021 R=ZZE=—-F+—HA=+H

Cost BX AR 11,247
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss R IH RORE R (8,187)
3,060

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 3% 129



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Development costs represented costs incurred at the
development phase of certain new technologies, which are
capitalised and amortised (if applicable) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2021 and 2020, all the intangible assets are

available for use.

The Group carried out annual impairment test for intangible
assets where an indicator of impairment appears by comparing
their recoverable amounts to their carrying amounts at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group, through its subsidiaries in Malaysia, is engaged in
the provision of system integration and development services
and maintenance services (the “System Integration CGU”). In
view of the deteriorating economy and the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic during the years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020,
the management considered that there is impairment indicator

under the System Integration CGU.

At 30 November 2020, the management assessed that certain
technology developed in previous years may not be easily meet
the customers’ increasing expectations and requirements for
their IT needs in the future market development, in particular,
after the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the recoverable
amount of these technologies under the System Integration CGU
which its fair value less costs of disposal was zero. Accordingly,
impairment loss on these technologies of approximately
RM2,226,000 was recognised for the year ended 30 November
2020.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

14.

BILEE®)

PR AN E T H R 2 PP R P E
EZKA - RERBESVBERME2
PRl 2 @ 7T R T PAB ANMb B 35 (fin i
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Yol eBEEREE @ HEEE HREED
SETFERERR -

ANER B35 R E AL S 2R P 2 A9 BT B A R4
ERERFES KRS E SRS
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T —FRZETTFEF-HA=+THILF
EHEEBE( RCOVID-19Z BB -
EEERRERESCECELSENTTE
IMEIEIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

At 30 November 2021,

amount of the System Integration CGU based on the value-in-

the Group assessed the recoverable

use calculation using pre-tax cash flow projections covering
a 3-year period which is provided by the management. The
estimated revenue and costs for each individual intangible asset
were based on management expectation and best assessment
based on currently available information. The estimated revenue
in future periods is projected based on the ongoing projects
and projects in tender. In view of the continuous but mitigated
situation of COVID-19 pandemic, the management make prudent
estimates based on the projects and tenders currently in progress
and assuming the performance of the Group maintaining at a
steady level at an average growth rate of 1% (2020: assuming the
performance of the Group to be recovered after the COVID-19
pandemic mitigates with a growth rate of 21%). Accordingly,
the recoverable amount of the System Integration CGU was
approximately RM4,760,000 (2020: approximately RM4,791,000)
and no impairment loss should be recognised (2020: no further
impairment loss was recognised) for the remaining non-current
assets allocated to the System Integration CGU at 30 November
2021.

Key assumptions and inputs used for value-in-use calculation

are as follows:

Average gross profit margin R ] e
Average growth rate F1gig R R
Discount rate BLIR =&

14.

BILEE®)

RZZB_—F+—H=+H8  ~EERE
EEEREN=FHMHRAMRSRERAE
EREENE  FEEARBREASELE
eI E S - KFRELEENMGFR
AMRABUEREENRARERREGE
FEREFERER - REHEHHFHK
ATDRBERETHIAB RRRABRE
Al e R COVID-19& 1B H B 1B A FTik iR
BB - BEEEREB A EEETHIER
MBRETRENMGE @ LERRAKER

EERBFEBTKE  FHEEERS 1%
(2020 F: BEAEBEEEE COVID-
19 RIBERIA 21% MIEERER) - E

- BEZZT=-_—F+—HA=+H ' ¥
i%ﬂﬁhﬂ%(f?f%i 21%) ° A
CREBRAERESEABMMAIND SR
iﬁi%%ﬁm 760,000L(=ZFE=FF : 45
#4,791,000C) MR =ZE=—F+—H
STRAEERSIETERBCREELS
N ERERDEERRREBR(=F
ZEF PR EETIRERR) ©

FIRME PR BAE 3 10 B R R A A RS
T

2020

ZETF

28% 28%
1% 21%
7% 9%

The management considered that any reasonable possible
change in the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation on the System Integration CGU would not cause

an impairment loss.

The remaining amortisation period of the internally developed
technology, Blackbutton, at 30 November 2021 are up to 15
months (2020: 18 months) with carrying amount of approximately
RM3,060,000 (2020: RM2,977,000).

EEERS  AREARTELBMA(E
REEFEMRANIZBRUOEEMNE
BRI E S - TEEZRERE -

RZZ=Z—F+—HA=+H - AIPHE
R Blackbutton ) Fl sh B sH A & %
15EA(ZZE==F :18fHA) ' BRAEE
#) ¥ 3,060,000c( ZT=FF : B
2,977,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. HEA T

Details of subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are R ERR KB AR FBOT
as follows:
Paid-up/
registered share Attributable equity interest  Principal activities and Legal form of corporate
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation  capital held by the Company place of operation existence
WEAER ERRIHE B /iR ARARRELRS IEREREEHY ARREMERKS
2020
3
Directly held by the Company
FRAERRE
Excel Elite Global Limited The BVI United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Private limited liability
(US$") 13,890 Kong company
Excel Elite Global Limited EBRUEE 13800%7 RERR - B4 LEERAE
(1%7))
Indirectly held by the Company
ARARERE
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM200,502 100% 100%  Provision of system integration Private limited liability
and computer related company
services, Malaysia
Mixsol Scn. Bnd. BREE 5H200,5027 RUEZRECREREERE - NLEERAA
i
Concorde Technology Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM500,000 100% 100%  Provision of IT products and  Private limited liability
services, Malaysia company
Concorde Technology Scn. Bhd.  SE 55000007 REETMEERRRE - AEERAA
BREE
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bha. Malaysia RM1,500,000 100% 100%  Provision of management Private limited liability
advice and consultancy company
services for computer
software and information
technology, Malaysia
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. EXED 51,500,007 REEBERIMREIMNR  AEERAT
LERERREARE
BREE

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. ES R HEMERKIE

2021 2020
—E-—F T F
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hiat E¥Fr ETFor
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=F2E5
A E e 9,807 7,393
Less: Loss allowance B ESERE 28 (999) (999)
16(a) 8,808 6,394
Other receivables H fth fE W R
Deposits, prepayments and other B BRAZREEAM
receivables FE WK TR 16(b) 782 1,130
9,590 7,524
(a) Trade receivables from third parties (a) ERE=FZEZERNE

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to 30 days, AEE—RIEZEANARAERTFE K
FTREEEMERZZH AR

STEE30BZIEES -

from the date of issuance of invoices, to its customers as

approved by the management on a case by case basis.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss RIMEEKR HEEAHEHL 2 E
AR %

ZEYRIE(MER B EER) 2

allowance) based on invoice date at the end of the

reporting period is as follows: DT
2021 2020
—E-—f —ETF
RM’000 RM’000
FMFT BT T
Within 30 days 30~ 6,525 1,672
31 to 60 days 31E60K 165 T
61 to 90 days 61E90K 73 —
91 to 180 days 91£E180K 65 151
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 196 9
Over 365 days HRB365K 1,784 3,658
8,808 6,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 16. B R E/EWNEIE &)
(a) Trade receivables from third parties (continued) (a) EWE=FzEZEWREE)
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RIPEHR @ IwmHiA RS 22
of the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due SEWZHIE (KR EERE) ZBER
date is as follows: ST :
2021 2020
=B —F —ECEF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BFT
Not yet due R HR 6,545 1,672
Past due: B
Within 30 days 30K 159 90
31 to 60 days 31E60K 61 =
61 to 90 days 61290k 2 29
91 to 180 days 91ZE 180K 62 112
181 to 365 days 181E365K 693 833
Over 365 days HBiB365K 1,286 3,658
2,263 4,722
8,808 6,394
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) &L  FEARRHEMERE
Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables RZEZ—F+—-—A=+THZ&
at 30 November 2021 were Goods and Services Tax © 0 TR R E b FE UK IE & R IR
receivables of approximately RM649,000 (2020: B MR R4 B % 649,000 (=
approximately RM649,000). FZFF : 4/5#649,0005T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 2 - T - —#+—A=F+HIEE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

17. BHREERANERE

LIABILITIES
2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RM’000 RM’000
BT EFor
Contracts in progress ETHHER
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BESLA HRANE #ER
profits less recognised losses to date wmARZS B EREE 74,319 60,473
Less: progress billings received and B B FEGE E IR
receivable (74,860) (62,451)
(541) (1,978)
Analysed for the reporting purpose: ERERBZ A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hiat F¥Fr i e
Contract assets BHEE 17(a) 287 166
Contract liabilities EHBE 17(b) (828) (2,144)
(541) (1,978)
There was no retention held by customers on services contracts R_BE-——FR_F-_ZEF+—A=+
at 30 November 2021 and 2020. B BFIEMREEOFERE
At 30 November 2021 and 2020, the contract assets and liabilities RZBEZ—FR_F_ZTF+—A=+
are expected to be received or settled within 12 months. A GHEERBEEAN12(EA AUE
HIELT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
assets and contract liabilities with customers within IFRS 15

during the year ended 30 November 2021 are as follows:

BHREERGHER#)

BH=E

“E—F+—HA=tHLEFEE R

BB i 5 R E 16 BENEZFET
VYZRHEEZANEERANARSE
(TEREERFEAREMERDEEZ

ZE)wT
(a) Contract assets (a) BHEE

2020
—ETF
RM’000 RM’000
BT BFT

At the beginning of ez =g |
the reporting period 166 9,400
Recognition of revenue R 238 =
Transferred to trade receivables EBEE 5 REWGIE (117) (9,234)
At the end of the reporting period ¥RE BAR 287 166

(b) Contract liabilities (b)

2020
—ToRE
RM’000 RM’000
BT HFr

At the beginning of ¥R B
the reporting period 2,144 150
Receipt in advance TEU R IE 231 2,144
Recognition of revenue TR (1,547) (150)
At the end of the reporting period MR EEIR 828 2,144

At 30 November 2021, the aggregate amount of transaction
price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations
is approximately RM9.3 million (2020: approximately
RM13.0 million). The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will

be recognised as revenue within one year or less.

136 MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

18.

19.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18. ZMRFIBITLEER
The Group had obtained banking facilities on issuance of AEFBEHBITHRETAEEBRITIREZ
bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy banks. Such MITERIGRITHE - BHEMEHRXR
facilities were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances. HIRITAERRFTER - ASKERETHEBAS
At 30 November 2021, the Group had utilised approximately HmME AEBR-_ZTE-_—F+—A=+
RM466,000 (2020: approximately RM309,000) under such AgtmEFRITRITERCBAZMER
facilities for issuing bank guarantees to customers in respect T4 E 466,000 0( ZF_FF - HIFK
of the Group’s fulfilment of related contracts. 309,0007T) °
BANK DEPOSIT AND BALANCES AND CASH 19. RITFRREHKURRE
2021 2020
—E=—fF —TTF
RM’000 RM’000
BMFT BT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEBE 7,181 10,311
Short-term time deposits MHIEHTT R 7,908 8,565
15,089 18,876

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
floating bank deposit rate. Short-term time deposits are made
for three months, and earn interest at the prevailing deposit
rates. The Group can withdraw the short-term fixed time deposits
anytime before the maturity date without incurring any significant

bank charges.

RITRESUAERE B FBRITERAER
FEMEBREA S - ERHERFRAH=
BA - LARITHERF EERRA S - K&
R 2 B AT RE A ER BUE M HI R AR
MAEELTAMERRITER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. BESREMENRIER

2021 2020
—E-—f —ETF
Note RM’000 RM’000
HisF BT BT
Trade payables from third parties EBNE=A2E5
P FRIE 20(a) 8,196 2,763
Other payables H fth A TR 18
Accruals and other payables FEAT B R I Hoth FE 5 OB 3,435 3,037
11,631 5,800
(a) Trade payables from third parties (a) ERNE=SzEZEARE

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

R|EMKR  REZEHE D ZE
SENFIRZIRE AT

2021 2020

—EB-—5F ZECTF

RM’000 RM’000

BT BT

Within 30 days 30AA 5,661 2,666
31 to 60 days 31ZE60K 450 34
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 150 T
91 to 180 days 912180k 900 T
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 1,000 T
Over 365 days B iE365K 35 63
8,196 2,763

The credit term on trade payables is up to 90 days.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

21.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 21. FEBE
2021 2020
—E=—fF —E_THF
RM’000 RM’'000
BT ST
Interest-bearing borrowings (secured) STEEE(EEA) 853 853
Carrying amounts of interest-bearing ARUATFHEEZGEEE
borrowings that are repayable (Note) RHEE (M)
Within one year —FR 44 12
One to two years —ZEWF 49 49
Two to five years MZERE 160 159
Over five years HRAF 600 633
853 853

Note: The interest-bearing borrowings, with a clause in their terms
that gives the lender an overriding right to demand repayment
at their sole discretion, are classified as current liabilities even
though the management does not expect that the lender would
exercise its rights to demand repayment. The amounts due are
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

The interest-bearing borrowings represent amounts due to
a bank in Malaysia with a maturity period of 20 years at 30
November 2021.

At 30 November 2021 and 2020, the interest-bearing borrowings
bore a floating interest rate at the bank’s Base Lending Rate
minus 2.10% per annum. The effective interest rate on interest-
bearing borrowings at 30 November 2021 is 2.3% (2020: 4.0%)

per annum.

The interest-bearing borrowings are drawn under a banking
facility. The interest-bearing borrowings are secured and

guaranteed by:

(i) properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1,195,000 (2020:
approximately RM1,223,000) at 30 November 2021, as set
out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements;

and

(i)  guarantees provided by Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr.
Siah Jiin Shyang, the ultimate controlling parties and the

directors of the Group.

frat st REEZED —RERGETERNE
BN - TRESENIEEERE
R BEEEBYTHRAERAKTE
BRERZEN G EREEDOES
MEEE - BERADREZE BRI
FMBEEEKRAHZS

AEEEER R —F+—H=1+HZ
H - FHA20F Z BN — MBS RAERT
ZRIE e

RZBZ—FR-ZZ-FF+—A=+
B SHEBEERRITEEERFEZZE
PR FFE210%5T 8 - RZEZEFF
T—A=+H  FEREEZERNERE
ME23%(—F_F4F :4.0%) °

AAREERRBRITRERRZEE - &
BREZEMRERAT :

() RZZEZ—F+—A=+RH ' 45
EFEAEMEZBEMFELNSEE
1,195,000 C( = FE=-FF : /HF ¥
1,223,0007T) - EEAFBERNEE
M mRMET12 0 &

(i AARBEEKERINREFTEER
FoHE MR A PTER M 2 HEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 B2 - T - —H+—A=F+HIEE

22.

23.

DEFERRED TAX 22. EIEHIA
The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising from NTERBE_T = —FR_F_FTF+
depreciation allowance for the years ended 30 November 2021 —A=TRILEEENEREELA RS
and 2020 was as follows: B RERIAE B
2021 2020
—E-—F TR ks
RM’000 RM’000
BMFT FToT
At the beginning of the reporting period R B 12 12
Charge to profit or loss Rz FHR 19 =
At the end of the reporting period RIREHR 31 12
Unrecognised deferred tax assets REREEREEE
At 30 November 2021, the Group has tax losses arising in R-ZZE-—F+—A=+8H ' "EBRE
Malaysia of approximately RM2,737,000 (2020: approximately R E EE’W)%IEETE 4955 ¥ 2,737,000
RM71,774,000) that can be offset against future taxable profits TL( —F - FF : F#1,774,0007T) 7] A
of the respective subsidiaries, which can be carried for 7 R B A BRI R R FERB A A - 7]
consecutive years of assessment (i.e. from year of assessment HEHEELEFNFERIZZEZZE=F
2022 to 2028 (2020: 2021 to 2027)). Deferred tax assets have —A%MEF(fyfﬁi —E-—FF
not been recognised in respect of the tax losses because it is :%”;_ti)) AR AEBRARRAAA
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against BERABMNABBEBRERZE
which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. Eﬂﬁ%ﬂEﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁgﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁwﬁki'%lﬁﬁ?
SHARE CAPITAL 23. BRA

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREE0.OTETLZ LR

Authorised: Yy

At 1 December 2019, RZZ-N¥+ZA-H"
30 November 2020 :%‘i:?iﬂ‘—ﬂ =+H

Number of

shares
ROHE

Equivalent
to RM
HEREE

and 30 November 2021 —E_-f§+-A=1H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 10,596,200
Issued and fully paid: BEIREBHAR :
At 1 December 2019, RZE-NF+=A-HB:

30 November 2020 “ZZZE+—-A=TH

and 30 November 2021 k=E--%+-A=+H 390,000,000 3,900,000 2,067,000

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, ARPT 2 MBARRE
COMPANY

GOl 2 WEMRE - AR E AR
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company MEMEFEESHOT -

and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies icgi: YNGIL|

2021 2020
B 2hyl——
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Hat F¥Fr Vi S
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EE AR ZRE 15 57 57
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other TR~ B R E A E
receivables RIE 16 18
Due from a subsidiary JE U —FEIF B A R 3k 1B 9,103 10,582
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRES 4,620 9,117
13,739 19,717
Current liabilities nEBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K E At FE < 518 477 492
Due to subsidiaries FEAST B B A R 5RIE 115 1,191
592 1,683
Net current assets REBEEFE 13,147 18,034
NET ASSETS EEFE 13,204 18,091
Capital and reserves EXR
Share capital %N 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves k] 24(a) 11,137 16,024
TOTAL EQUITY A 13,204 18,091
This statement of financial position was approved and authorised A BRAERR T =_—F A=+ N\H
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2022 and BESSIARKETE A TIES
signed on its behalf by REREZE
Chong Yee Ping Liu Yan Chee James
EEHR 2R
Director Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, KPR 2 MR RIER &)
COMPANY (continued)

(a) Movements of the reserves (a) fEEZ2E
Share Capital ~ Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
K@ BRfE R ER by
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

ik Vil Vi Vit S
(Note 25(a)) (Note 25(b))
(Hizt25(a) (Hiit25(b))

At 1 November 2019 RZE-N5+-B-B 28,732 57 (9,299) 19,490
Loss for the year and total FREBRER

comprehensive expenses PERZEE

for the year — — (3,466) (8,466)
At 30 November 2020 and RZZZZFE+-A=TAK

1 December 2020 “E-$451+-F-B 28,732 57 (12,765) 16,024
Loss for the year and total FABBRER

comprehensive expenses PERZERE

for the year — = (4,887) (4,887)
At 30 November 2021 R-ZE--%+-A=1H 28,732 57 (17,652) 11,137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

25. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

It represents the excess of the net proceeds from issuance
of the Company’s shares over its par value. Under the
law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, it is distributable to the Company’s
shareholders provided that the Company is able to pay its

debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
Capital reserve

For the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group and the statement of financial position of the
Company, it represents the aggregate amount of the issued
and paid-up share capital of the entities now comprising
the Group before completion of the Reorganisation (as
defined in the prospectus issued by the Company dated
29 September 2018) and the Company, respectively, less
consideration paid to acquire the relevant interests (if any)

upon completion of the Reorganisation.
Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

25. f#E
(a)

(b)

(c)

R0 = E

B EERARRETRND ZFAEF
FREFHBEHEEERD - BRIEM
EREEERARAZEBERRA
A MARRBRENE—REB
BREPREEBIMENERE
% AIEA SR FARRRE -

BB

RAEB2GEMBRAREAR
RIZHBKARME » EXAFEED
AlENTEREAR(ERE RARRFAMT
BRAHMAZE-—N\FAA=ZTNA
NHBERER)NRHEXNSIEEZE
BRERARARZEETRBRKRAL
R AR TS K E AR 1A B U AR R A
mZBRNREME) -

BE X ik

AEENELFEEEREAEE
MR mRELNMEEL
Z8 - FBREAMBRERME2M
B EEBORERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i Upon the initial adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 December
2019, the Group recognised right-of-use assets with

a total capital value of approximately RM946,000.

(i) During the year ended 30 November 2021, the Group
acquired a (2020: one) motor vehicle by means
of lease arrangement with a total capital value at
the inception date of the lease of approximately
RM317,000 (2020: approximately RM194,000).

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

Details of changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities are as follows:

Year ended 30 November 2021

26. FEHERERZENENY

(a) EEFREXRH

(i)

—NWE+-A—BHK
R B B A R 22 A S5 1657
% FAEBEBRERBENS
#946,000THIE HEEE ©

REE-_ZE-_—F+—A=+
HIEFE  A5SEBRAAER
PWET —(ZF=FF : —)
WAHE  ERERKANE
BEAREBENRFE317,0007T
(ZZE=FF : F#194,000
JL) °

(b) BMEEFDELEZEBEHR

AEERETHELZABEIH
BEIIT

BE_Z2_-F+—-A=tHLFE

Non-cash
changes
FREEH
At At
1 December Contract 30 November
2020 Cash flows Addition  termination 2021
S 23 R=B=-%
-I-_H—EI RenE 1 BHALE +-A=1H
RIM’000 RIM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BHTR EHTT V-3 20 V- s V- S
Interest-bearing FTEEER
borrowings 853 - - - 853
Lease liabilities MERE 966 (212) 476 (19) 1,211
Total liabilities from MEEDELL
financing activities BEBSE 1,819 (212) 476 (19) 2,064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (continued)

(b)

26. FEREREBRZB|HNER )

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBELEZEF/YRKRE)
activities (continued)
Year ended 30 November 2020 HE-_T-TF+—A=1+HLHF
=
Non-cash
changes
FIRSEH
At At
1 December Adoption 30 November
2019 Cash flows of IFRS 16 Addition 2020
RZZ-NF HHBRE WZZZZF
+=A-A Beng  EB16% #M +-A=TH
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Vit ¥ Vit S Vit S FEFT
Interest-bearing FTEEE
borrowings 857 (4) . 853
Obligations under finance REMEER
leases 849 — (849) i
Lease liabilities HERRE = (202) 1,017 151 966
Total liabilities from REFHELL
financing activities BRER 1,706 (206) 168 151 1,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere

in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transaction with a director of the Company

On 20 March 2018, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang to lease the property
commencing on 1 April 2018. For the year ended 30
November 2021, the related cash outflow for leases
was approximately RM103,200 (2020: approximately
RM103,200).

Remuneration for key management personnel

(including directors) of the Group

27. BHAERS

BRGANBREREMBLFREZRS,/
BRI  AEBAUTHB RS -

(a)

(b)

BEEAAR-BEEZRS

R-ZZ—NE=ZA=-+H ~&HE
B SEEET Y HERS 8=
T-N\FHA—BAREEZWE -
HE-_Z-_—F+—A=1+HLF
E - HEEBERSREBENAS
B 103,200 0( — T - FF : &
103,2007T) °

AEETEEEAR (BRES)2

2020
—E_TF
RM’000 RM’000
BE% T E8Fr

Salaries, allowances and other ¢ R RHEMAEYET
benefits in kind 1,620 1,802

Contributions to defined TE RS RGN Bl 2 AR

contribution schemes 40 63
1,660 1,865

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out

in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
Personal guarantees obtained

The ultimate controlling parties have provided unlimited
personal guarantees in respect of the interest-bearing
borrowings obtained by the Group from a bank in Malaysia
as set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, restricted bank balances
and bank balances and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables/payables
and contract assets and liabilities which arise directly from its

business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management
generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum

level as follows:
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings with
floating interest rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are disclosed in

Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss before income tax would increase/
decrease by approximately RM21,000 (2020: approximately
RM18,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the period

until the next annual end of the report period.

28.

cREAREEERERBE

AEBFESMIEBEFNEEE  H
E8E  XBRHSRITEBARRITAERK
B  ZREeMITAZIZENARAE
Bz2EEERERYE - NEEESR
BEMEEBIDERELZEMESRMT
B PInE 5 R AR, FRIE A R
BHEERARE -

rEEsRIAZZ2RRANEEAR - &5
ERBRERDESRER - BEEE—RRUE
B B B ERERAR <P SRS - M AN 5k B A
ZHRERBRERE  FBEWOT

F=ER

AEEEHNEESH 2 HBER - HE
ERASERIPREAEZAREESR
B o AREREBEZNEREZGRRR
RAMBEREAME2IRE -

MRS EIR - W =808 4> 10018 &
DR EM BB TE - AEEBRATER
RIE &L, 54 B 21,0007 (=
F-FF - HF18000T) °

E A GURE D AT T RRER A R B B e H
R#EE - AERZBHCEAREBRCH
FEz MR MEE o 100fEZE 2 Z N
g EEEHNEE MMEHRE AESF
EREERFNEZMESIEAEEE 2
fl e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets
and contract assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of impairment losses, represents
the Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account
the value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is summarised

28.

TREREEBFERBEEK @)

FERR

EERRIEEHEABRERTEEEREN
AEBFIBZER  SHAEERXEBRE
ZRE - GENBHRRPERAZEHEE
RaWEBEEZREEGIRHERRE) L
AEBEABEZEERR - EPALETFAR
PR EERm R EBEE Z2EE - K
SEMAESRKXEERRERNT :

as follows:

2020
—ETF
RM’000 RM’000
V-7 -E BT
Contract assets EHEE 287 166
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E M URIE 9,542 7,476
Restricted bank balances SRR FIERTTAE RS 466 309
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 15,089 18,876
25,384 26,827

Trade receivables and contract assets BESERKFBERENEE

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits for
the customer. The receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis by senior management and the Group’s exposure

to bad debts is not significant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
and individual credit limit assessment which is mainly based on

the Group’s own trading records.
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AEBERAYREBRIEZE=ZTTETR
5 o ERXEMFHELH - RRBFTHE
BERPZEREEAZRATPERARGE
RER - BRUKBEHESREEBRES
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AEEZEFEERREERZFPERFER
& BPFREMETERBRZEZDRAR
TeyeEERR  BRERE - BFZ
EREERBE2EEEFTAREAGHRRE
FHEITHE R EIRERARELR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2021, the Group had a concentration of credit
risk as approximately 66.0% (2020: 54.1%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets were due from the Group’s
largest trade debtor and contract assets and approximately
95.1% (2020: 94.7%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets were due from the Group’s five largest trade debtors

and contract assets.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables and contract assets are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified approach
in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract assets
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at
each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. The expected loss rate used in the
provision matrix is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted
for current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historical data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s estimate on future economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during

the year.

28.

TREREEBEREEK @)

FEREE)
ESRURFEREHNEE (&)

RZZBEZ—F+—HA=+H ' rBRY
66.0% (ZFE=-FF :54.1%) B Z WK
BREREVNEEABRAEERAES
BEHAZREREGHNEE - R#95.1%
(ZE-FF :94.7%) 2 B 5 EW G TE
BREVNEEABRBRASEERKNE HES
AZRIEREHNEE MASEEEFE
BERER o

AEBzEPHBHEZZEFPEK BS
EYFRRARRRSEI R - MRER
BRRETPRRA OERINME R
BN - AEBERABLITAAEES
ERUHEEEMNEENTBYEERBR - I
RERSANRBEEFTENRAGES
BRERBEREE  BECRIBBHBEERE
EBRTHAENBRERR - YREBA
MR ERTIEER R REEREFELAE -
BimERMANENBEENRIEREE=
FHNEREEBHRERIMSER - XA
AIRATEMERREHAE  URREES
EHEHROQEMR I E R B ER
VAR 25 65 18 4 B WO R OR TR HR 4R TR A B9 AR 2R
REFRR G - FA - [EFRITSRIEL
LEPN SR IE 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E Rk M

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. SRIEREEEERBE#)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FER(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ESRKFBERENEE (&)
The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for RZEZ—FR_E_FF+—HA=1+H
trade receivables and contract assets using a provision matrix FREBEEEEENEUERMENEE
at 30 November 2021 and 2020 is summarised below. EERRLEHEEEEERBENT -
At 30 November 2021 REB=Z—F+—HA=+H
Expected Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
BHEEE IREEALE BERE A ERE A SERE
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BE¥Tr BEMTrT BMFT
Trade receivable ERER
Not past due R H — 6,545 — 6,545 No &
1 - 180 days past due #H15E180H - 284 - 284 No #&
181 - 365 days past due @ Hi181%E3658 2% 708 (15) 693 No &
Over 1 year past due BEER— 5 43% 2,270 (984) 1,286 No &
9,807 (999) 8,808
Contract assets BHEE - 287 — 287 No f&
At 30 November 2020 R-ZE-ZF+—A=1H
Expected Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
TEHE R REERE BEEE MBEREFE EERE
% RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000
FEFr HEFr EETFT
Trade receivable ERER
Not past due KA = 1,672 - 1,672 No &
1 - 180 days past due #H1E180H — 231 — 231 No &
181 — 365 days past due #HI181%365H 2% 850 (17) 833 No %
Over 1 year past due BEER— 21% 4,640 (982) 3,658 No #
7,393 (999) 6,394
Contract assets BHEE = 166 = 166 No &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2021, the Group recognised loss allowance
of approximately RM999,000 (2020: RM999,000) on the trade
receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for trade

receivables during the year is summarised below.

28. SREAMEEAEREKE#)

FEREE)
ESRURFEREHNEE (&)

RZEZ—F+—HA=1+H ' x5E
EnESEBRERREBRENTE
999,0007t( = F = F4F : 5 #999,000
) FRNESRERFRBZEBREEZS
R o

2021 2020

=g==F 2

RM’000 RM’000

BT ST T

At the beginning of the reporting period & AR 999 238
Increase in allowance B M — 761
At the end of the reporting period HEEAR 999 999

At the date of this annual report, approximately 77.8% of the

gross trade receivables at 30 November 2021 have been settled.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables
and contract assets at 30 November 2021 (2020: Nil).

BEATHAY  R_B=—F+— A=
+ B  E 5 U R 4077 8% B S A
fif o

AEEBR T -_—F+—HA=1+HIER
BHRWHARENEERB TMIKAER
(ZE—FF ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E-Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low credit risk
based on the borrowers’ strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on other receivables is measured on 12-month ECL

and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience over the past three
years and the financial position of the counterparties, adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the
counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. The management of the Group considers the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into account

the financial position and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant

assumptions made during the year.
Restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash

The management considers the credit risk in respect of restricted
bank balances and bank balances and cash is minimal because
the counter-parties are authorised financial institutions with high

credit ratings.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

28.

TREREEBFERBEEK @)

FEREE)
At EK 7 E

AEERR  HREEARGEHANET
BNREREREZBARENREENR
% HMERKAZEERRERIE - i
FEW IR 2 BENR12EA 2 RHAEEE
BitE - IRBRERRERAREE -

RGBSR EEERR @  ASEET kY
FHBE=FZRAEBEREEBRERNK
MBERR - RAFTZEFEREEZEOR
ERNEBEAT 2 EXNEBER - RIEBEET
AREFHEERETEZ - REBERE
ZHERMBERRTARE - BEEHTF
TREBBRAREEERER  AKEETE
BRA HWEeREECRBREESRL
FERX -

WA TR RAEL 2 BARR
LB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific
policy for managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the earliest date on which the

Group is required to settle, is summarised as below:

28. *RIAMEEREREE &)

RBE R

AEBZERRARBESHEERERN
MER ¥l - AEEYEABBRER
Hi#is - RBEEHRAEESHEE
ZARBIRANIHANRORIBAE B AL
B2 REBH)MAMT -

Total
Total  contractual Ondemand  Over1year Over 2 years
carrying undiscounted  or less than but within but within
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5years Over 5 years
AERAHE  RERGYD BB1F BB2F
A%AE SREAR ME BE2ER BHE5EFA #l5 F
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
ERTx FRTx ERTx ERTx ERTx BRTx
At 30 November 2021 R=F=-%+-A=+H
Trade and other payables B REMENFE 11,631 11,631 11,631 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE (M)
(Note) 853 853 853 - - -
Lease liabilities REBE 1,211 1,416 291 249 554 322
13,695 13,900 12,775 249 554 322
At 30 November 2020 RIB-Z4+-A=1H
Trade and other payables B o REMERNTUE 5,800 5,800 5,800 — — —
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE (M)
(Note) 853 853 853 - = =
Lease liabilities HERE 966 1,095 270 235 522 68
7,619 7,748 6,923 235 522 68
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 #Z2 T -—F+—A=+HItF

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: The amounts repayable under bank loan agreement that include
a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right to call the
borrowings at any time are classified under the category of “On
demand or less than 1 year”. However, the management of the
Group does not expect that the bank would exercise such right to
demand the repayment and thus, the borrowings, which included
the related interest, would be repaid according to the below

schedule as set out in the bank loan agreement as follow:

&

28. TRIEMEEEERBER®)

RBEERR(E)

Het - RBROTBEFHRABEEZIHEIER
MEERFDTF R - ZHARER
T IR1T AR M REFIBE B B B B R 1K
Koo A AREERERBARTHA
SITEMEBENERER - Bt » %1fE
E(2EERENE) SIRIERTER =
PR TS5 MR ER

Total

contractual Over 1 year  Over 2 years

Total carrying undiscounted Less than but within but within

amount

cash flow 1 year 2 years 5years Over 5 years

RUERENE BB1F BB

AREE

SREAE SME BHE2F R BHESER i85 F

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BEFr BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT E¥Fr
At 30 November 2021 RZB=-%+-A=+H
Interest-bearing borrowings AR 853 1,086 7 78 233 704
At 30 November 2020 WZE-ZF+-A=+H
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 853 1,096 4 78 233 744
Fair value A¥E

All financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values at 30 November
2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk MR

Year ended 30 November 2021 H#E—Z - —F+—A=1+HILFE

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29, EXRER
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEFBEAEE BEAREAERFE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern BB ZEEN  WRERES ARMKEE
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages o AEBEBHEEARARERELFHE
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment BIEAESHEEASIMNRE  REZES
of dividends to equity owners, call for additional capital from ANERBEINERSHEEE - LR E
equity owners or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes B o MRBEZE - —FR-ZZT_FTF+—
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the A=1+HLEFE - BHBE - BRIER
years ended 30 November 2021 and 2020. I EEEE) o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years. The financial
information for the years ended/as at 30 November 2018, 2019, 2020
and 2021 is extracted from the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report while the relevant information for the year ended/

as at 30 November 2017 is extracted from the Prospectus.

THAAEEREARENRERE 2B FIEE
BREEURBEZHE - BE-ZT—N\F -
—E-NF ZEEFRIF_—F+—H
=STBIEFE RZAZUBAR RS A
FWMBmEMBRE  MBE-T—tF+—
BA=+RHLFE MN&AZHBERAHES
BRER o

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 November

TEEBE+T-A=tHLEFEZEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
T T —E-NF T N\F ZZE—tF
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
F¥Fr | BTt BEFr F¥Fr FBETFr
Revenue Y= 17,177 10,011 19,428 47,581 38,929
(Loss) Profit before taxation BRELAT (EE) &R (6,219) (11,192) 1,383 10,266 16,604
Income tax expenses FreBip (48) — (71) (2,414) (71)
(Loss) Profit for the year EE (FE) BA (6,267)| (11,192 1,312 7,852 16,533
Other comprehensive Htt2mE (X)) W&
(expenses) income (22) 36 (354) — =
(Loss) Profit and total FE (F58) 27k:
comprehensive (expenses) | (FX) hEeE
income for the year (6,289) (11,156) 958 7,852 16,533
Assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30 November
AEERT—BA=tHZEEREE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Ll =T —TN\F —FN\F ZTtF
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
BT | BFr EETfr SEFr FEFr
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,885 6,000 6,693 1,707 2,119
Current assets REEE 25,432 26,875 36,028 44,032 23,789
Total assets HEE 31,317 32,875 42,721 45,739 25,908
Current liabilities REBAE 14,527 10,046 8,766 13,352 21,861
Non-current liabilities FREBEE 1,005 755 725 115 136
Net assets EEFE 15,785 22,074 33,230 32,272 SR
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